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Mission Statement

A N N U A L  R E P O R T

KUWAIT INTERNATIONAL BANK

To reach a leading position in the region in the Islamic banking industry and become the best bank offering

services to its costumers by providing the most innovative products and services in compliance with the Islamic

Sharia’a law, creating an appropriate professional environment, realizing rewarding returns for the shareholders,

upholding the highest ethical standards in business practices, and contributing to activities benefiting the

community.
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In the Name of Allah, the Compassionate, the Merciful

Allah the Almighty said in the Holy Quran "Praise be to

Allah, who hath guided us to this, never could we have

found guidance, had it not been for the guidance of

Allah", Allah’s words be praised.

Praise be to Allah, Lord of the Worlds, peace and blessings

be upon our noblest Prophet.

Dear Shareholders,

May peace and Allah’s mercy be upon you.

Thanks to Allah the Almighty, Kuwait International

Bank has entered a new phase in its history on July 1st,

2007, with the conversion of all its operations in

accordance with the Islamic Sharia’a. Since then, the

Bank has begun operating as an Islamic banking

institution under the new name of "Kuwait International

Bank". Today, I would like to congratulate you for this

blessed step, for your sincere and determined efforts

which led to the achievement of your objectives.

Truthful and relentless endeavors from the part of your

honorable General Assembly and the different bodies of

the Bank represented by the Board of Directors, the

Sharia’a Supervisory Board, and the Executive

Management as well as all the staff have contributed to

the implementation of the conversion with the highest

level of excellence and professionalism.

The process of conversion to an Islamic banking

institution were not to be completed with confidence

and assuredness without integrating a series of

fundamental cornerstones, first by adopting a hierarchy-

based conversion approach, respecting an order of

priorities, taking full advantage of the existing human

potentials by developing their skills through appropriate

training to absorb the new business, identifying the new

Islamic banking products, and adapting all customers’

dealings to the new reality. Furthermore, the conversion

process has been achieved through successive stages

characterized by outstanding technical precision and

guided by a set of core principles.

Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased to submit to you Kuwait International

Bank’s annual report of the fiscal year ending December

31, 2007, which includes the achievements and efforts

aimed at increasing shareholders’ equity and developing

business initiatives, highlighting the most significant

economic and banking developments on global, regional

and local levels. The year 2007 was full of challenges

associated with the implementation of the conversion

process. Thanks to Allah and your support, the Bank

has achieved good financial results at all levels. At this

point, I would like to congratulate you for the good

financial results achieved in the year 2007, during which

we managed to double the earnings per share, which

leaped from 11.73 fils in 2006 to 23.3 fils in 2007. This

blessed return is subsequent to an increase in the Bank’s

net profits from KD 9.4 million in 2006 to KD 9.17

million in 2007, marking a 4.90% increase.

In this context, I would like to highlight other key

performance indicators, as follows:

1. Deposits of customers and financial institutions

increased to KD 772 million which is 20% over the

previous year. This comes as a result of the client

base expansion, the banking transactions

enhancement in response to the package of measures

applied by the Bank in 2007 and represented by an

increase in the number of branches, as well as the

development of unique Islamic banking services.

2. Net financing portfolio increased to KD 574 million

which is 18.7% over the previous year.

3. Total assets increased to KD 948 million which is

18% over the previous year.

4. The overall shareholders’ equity increased to KD

158 million which is 10.7%.

Based on the increase of banking activity volume and

business results, financial criteria have shown

improvement in the Bank’s financial position in 2007,

the rate of return on assets reached 2.1% (compared to

1.2% in 2006), and the rate of return on shareholders’

equity 12% (compared to 6.3 % in 2006).

In light of that, and upon the approval of the competent

regulatory authorities, the Board of Directors

recommended the distribution of cash dividends at 10%

of the nominal value equivalent to 10 fils per share as

well as 10% free grant equivalent to 10 shares for every

100 shares.

Dear Shareholders,

Now that Allah bestowed upon us the success of the

conversion to an Islamic bank, I would like to thank

you all for your tireless efforts and constructive endeavors

towards achieving what we all aspired to, by successfully

completing this journey. I would also like to extend my

grateful thanks to all those who supported and
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encouraged us to move forward with the implementation

of all conversion stages with determination and

persistence, mainly the Central Bank of Kuwait for their

constant support and in recognition of their regulatory

and supervisory role all through the conversion process.

I also extend my gratitude to the dear members of the

Board of Directors and to Their Eminences members of

the Sharia’a Committee. Acknowledgements also goes

to all the consultants that contributed to the achievement

of this historic milestone. Last but not least, special

thanks goes to our dear customers who responded with

a noble spirit of understanding and cooperation to adapt

their existing operations and convert them to contracts

and transactions compliant with the true Sharia’a law.

Dear Shareholders,

The year of conversion has successfully passed, praise

be to Allah. Today, we look forward to exploring the

near future prospects and we are pleased to inform you

of the key features of our future plan for the next two

years, by Allah’s will, which can be summarized as

follows:

1. Continuing to achieve good growth rate of the Bank’s

total assets.

2. Opening more branches of the Bank in 2008 and

early 2009 to cover all areas in Kuwait with high

population density.

3. Adopting the latest banking technology developments

and applications to provide innovative and unique

banking services commensurate with all customers’

needs.

4. Expanding geographically and identifying Islamic

banking outlets for the Bank outside the State of

Kuwait.

5. Building up the staff skills through training courses

in order to provide better service to our customers

in accordance with the requirements of quality, 

flexibility and speed.

Dear Shareholders,

As I submit to you this report, I would like to give special

thanks to the Executive Management, the specialized

committees and all the staff members who have

collaborated with us and proved a high spirit marked

by impartiality, dedication, professionalism and

outstanding performance, contributing to the success

of the conversion process, through which Kuwait

International Bank has become one of the Islamic

banking institutions in the State of Kuwait providing

innovative Islamic banking products.

Allah granted us success for the benefit of our customers

and our beloved country, Kuwait. We wish you all success

and to our promising institution more prosperity under

the patronage of His Highness the Amir Sheikh Sabah

Al Ahmed Al Jaber Al Sabah, His Highness the Crown

Prince Sheikh Nawaf Al Ahmad Al Jaber Al Sabah and

His Highness the Prime Minister Sheikh Nasser Al

Mohammad Al Ahmad Al Sabah, may Allah protect

them all.

May peace, mercy and blessings of Allah be

upon you.

Abdul Wahab Mohammad Al-Wazzan

Chairman of the Board

A N N U A L  R E P O R T

KUWAIT INTERNATIONAL BANK
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Anyone who examines Islamic banking finds the

ingenuity of the Islamic system and its superiority and

excellence in treating and solving problems and providing

successful alternatives, being derived from divine

revelation and the Sharia’a blessed by Allah to all

mankind at all times and places. One of the most

important areas that the Sharia’a came to appraise and

lay down the foundations is economics and finance.

The benefit of Islamic Sharia’a is revealed in the

economic activity through the fact that it did not place

it in a limited frame but came with a flexible system

consistent with the ever-changing nature of people’s

economic life, which endlessly evolves in time and place.

Islamic banks - which are considered the major part of

the Islamic banking system – work to meet the

requirements of the development needed for the Muslim

communities; they are committed to sound economic

foundations consistent with Islamic principles; they are

also distinguished from other traditional institutions by

special characteristics, mainly including the following:

1. They comply with the provisions of the Islamic law

in all actions, so as to achieve harmony between

Islamic belief and Sharia’a, religion and world

affairs, faith, behavior and conduct, hence the

believer feels psychologically safe and self-confident.

2. They rely on the system of profit-sharing and avoid

riba and interest.

3. The Islamic banks are specialized in the engagement

of social and cultural activities, complying with the

values and ethics as well as aiming at supporting

social solidarity among the community.

The nature of the Islamic banking system based on the

compliance with the Sharia’a laws in regard to the

interaction with financial matters, guarantees the

achievement of the performance goals, provided that

the Islamic financial institutions (banks and financial

companies) are committed to this system in

understanding and implementation as good

implementation is a prerequisite for the efficiency of the

banking operations, especially at this time when the

Islamic banking system has been remarkably

distinguished through the achieved successes, as it

operates now under the global banking industry, in a

fully competitive environment and under increasing

challenge.

In conclusion, we ask Allah the Almighty to help us

carry this message and perform it brilliantly to benefit

from it by avoiding riba, prohibited by Allah and His

Messenger. Verily Allah is the Granter of Success, praise

be to Allah the Lord of the Worlds.
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During the year 2007, Kuwait International Bank

conducted its activities in the midst of economic and

banking changes witnessed in the surrounding

environment, whether internationally, regionally or

locally. These changes have imposed more challenges

facing the Bank while it was conducting the conversion

process from a conventional bank specializing in real

estate to a fully-commercial bank working in accordance

with the Islamic Sharia’a, building a solid ground and

taking firm steps toward progress, growth and evolution.

These developments may be summarized as follows:

1. Global Economic Developments:

In the year 2007, the global economy witnessed disparate

growth rates. In fact, the U.S. economy was adversely

affected by the mortgage crisis and capital markets

turmoil, leading the economic performance towards

recession in the U.S., where the economic growth rate

did not exceed 1.9% (compared to 2.9% in 2006). The

Euro zone countries were also affected by the capital

markets collapse and credit crisis, registering together

a modest economic growth rate of around 2.5% in 2007.

In the same context, the economic growth rate of Japan

did not exceed 2% in 2007.

As for the dynamic side of the economic performance

for the year 2007, it consisted of the emerging economies

represented by China (11.5%), India (8.9%), Russia

(8%), the OPEC (7.6%) and Africa (5.7%), which have

become collectively one of the major sources of stability

of the global economy.

IMF’s forecasts show that the growth rate of the world

economy is heading toward a relative recession in 2008,

with ongoing economic recession in the United States

of America and to some extent, Japan and the Euro zone

countries, along with ongoing difficulties in the mortgage

market, which are expected to extend the declination

of financial investment activity, while higher energy

prices and weaker return on real estate assets are likely

to dampen consumption rates.

2. Regional Economic Developments:

The escalation of oil prices had a direct impact on

enabling the OPEC countries (including the GCC

countries) to post record financial returns in 2007 of

about USD 675 billion. Some forecasts also indicate that

the revenues of OPEC countries may increase to USD

850 billion in 2008. These financial returns have helped

the OPEC countries to increase their economic growth

rate from 5.7% in 2006 to 7.6% in 2007. The rate is

expected to further increase to 10.6% in 2008.

However, the economies of the OPEC countries in general

and the GCC countries in particular have been adversely

affected by: the sizeable expansion of aggregate demand

for goods and services due to higher public spending of

21%, together with the escalating cost of imports from

European markets in particular following the rising

exchange rates of the Euro and Pound Sterling against

the US Dollar, to which most of the Gulf countries’

currencies are pegged. Consequently, inflationary

pressures have worsened the economies of these countries,

which depend on imports to meet most of their

consumption needs. The inflation rate in the GCC

countries has risen at an average of 3.5% in 2006 to 8%

in 2007, the highest rates being in Qatar (13.7%) and

the UAE (10%).

With regard to this disturbing economic phenomenon,

the State of Qatar and the UAE marked a sizeable increase

in salaries and wages (almost 70% for the latter), while

the Saudi Arabian government has recently implemented

a package of financial procedures in an effort to contain

inflation.

3. Islamic Money Market:

The overall number of Islamic financial institutions is

estimated at more than 120 institutions in 2007

spreading all over the world in more than 75 countries.

These institutions have been able to deal across the most

important global markets achieving continuing

successes, as the Islamic finance industry has averaged

a record of 20% annual growth rate till the year 2007.

At the GCC level, the financial industry has grown faster

than expected, posting an increase in assets volume of

over 40% in 2007. In the State of Kuwait, three Islamic

banks operate currently, in addition to 39 Islamic

investment companies. On the basis of the total assets

criterion, Islamic institutions in Kuwait have been able

to gain an estimated share of up to nearly a third of the

total banking and financial activity at end-2007.
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4. Developments of the Kuwaiti Economy:

With the international crude oil prices touching the

USD 100 a barrel mark in 2007, Kuwait has achieved

an economic growth rate of around 12% for the second

consecutive year, which is among the highest rates at

the GCC level, boosting Kuwait’s economic prosperity

for the fifth consecutive year, during which the GDP

reached KD 30 billion. This development has been

reflected in a marked expansion of public expenditure

and a substantial increase in cash supply.

Public expenditure rose by 27% to reach about KD 12

billion in the fiscal year 2007/08. The government’s

public budget project for the fiscal year 2008/09 allocated

the sum of around KD 19.1 billion to public expenditures.

Preliminary estimations indicate that the current fiscal

year is expected to end with a real financial surplus of

more than KD 7 billion, thanks to the difference between

the Kuwaiti crude oil average sale price (about USD 72

/ barrel) and the budget estimated price that tied the

budget preparation time to USD 36 / barrel.

The cash supply indicator in Kuwait has reflected a

steady increase over the past four year period ending in

2007, from 12% at end-2004 to 12.3% at end-2005,

followed by 21.7% at end-2006 and 19.2% at end-2007.

Therefore, fiscal and monetary policies have moved

toward expansion during last years, leading to an

increase in overall demand for goods and services which

have inevitably led to a change in inflation rates from

1% of the 2000-2004 average to 4.1% in 2005, followed

by 3% in 2006 then a remarkable increase of 6.2% in

2007.

Amid these developments, the Kuwaiti Dinar exchange

rate continued its upward trend against the US Dollar

even by a relatively limited rate during the past six years

ending with a 2% increase at end-2007 compared to the

previous year’s price.

The expansionist tendency of the local economy has

been reflected on the banking sector’s activity; the total

assets reached KD 35,5 billion at end-2007. Total

customer deposits have also increased to KD 18.3 billion

at end-2007 which is 20.2% from the previous year.

Likewise, the banks have tended to expand the facilities

they offer; hence total bank credit reached KD 20,1

billion at end-2007 which is 34.9% from the previous

year.

On the other hand, the Kuwait Stock Exchange (KSE)

has witnessed 16 new listings in 2007, bringing the total

of listed companies to 196.  It has also had a remarkable

rise in 2007, the price index posted a 12558.9 points

record with a 2491.5 points increase which is 24.7%

from 2006. Traded shares amounted to 70.5 billion,

valued at KD 37,5 billion, through the implementation

of some 2,1 million transactions. The sizeable

development of KSE during 2007 is attributed to several

factors, the most important of which would be the steady

increase in oil prices, along with the surplus in the state

budget, higher domestic liquidity growth rates, and the

start of the flow of some foreign direct investments into

the country following the tax law amendment. The

operating profit growth rates achieved by the listed

companies had a clear impact in playing a key role in

attracting the attention of investors.

A N N U A L  R E P O R T
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The year 2007 witnessed the second real estate boom after the one in 2002, outstandingly

breaking the previous years' increase rates. Land prices and rents exceeded KIB's and

the market’s expectations at never-achieved-before rates. Large real estate deals were

witnessed, bringing highly positive and stimulating atmosphere to the sector.

The average real estate transactions per year between 2002 and 2006 reached about KD

2,566 million. In 2007, the total real estate transactions reached about KD 4,447 million

an increase of 62.9% from 2006, which amounted to about KD 2,731 million. The other

real estate indicators such as the transaction numbers and the average transaction

price also achieved consecutive increases. The key factors of the increase in real estate

trading volume in 2007 over the previous year can be summarized as follows:

1. Stability of the Kuwaiti Dinar discount rate and beginning of the US Dollar interest

rate reduction as of September 18, 2007, and speculations preceding this date; the

real estate market moved positively, expecting a later reduction of the Kuwaiti Dinar

interest rates. This was very obvious starting mid-2007, where the total value of

transactions amounted to about KD 2,435 million compared to KD 2,011 million

in the first half of the year, achieving an increase of 21%.

2. The decline of investment opportunities in Kuwait, which are confined to real estate

and stock markets; other sectors including agriculture, tourism, industry (excluding

oil) are not attractive or lucrative investment channels compared to the real estate

fixed and low-risk returns, especially with the limitation of plots (commercial

investment real estate). Moreover, laws and legislation have reduced investment

opportunities, especially when BOT projects were halted, which was reflected in the

increase of industrial land prices all over Kuwait.

3. The Stability of the economic and political climate, the improvement of the stock

market, the reduction of taxes on foreign companies to 10%, the governmental

orientation towards transforming Kuwait into a financial hub, along with structural

reforms of the various ministries of the State, accompanied by the growing population

of the State of Kuwait as well as the increase of Kuwaiti residents reaching more

than 3,300,000 people, in addition to the improvement of public income were all

factors that helped stimulate the real estate sector.

4. Improvement of the public budget with an increase of income due to higher oil

price, turning part of the income for infrastructure projects in Kuwait’s new areas,

such as Al -Messila, Al-Khairan, Saad Al-Abdullah, Jaber Al-Ahmad, in addition to

renewing the old areas’ infrastructure, all helped to enhance the property values

of these areas.
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The following gives a brief summary of the real estate activities in every
Governorate:

1. Al Asimah (Al Kuwayt) Governorate - Kuwait City:
Office rental rates in Kuwait City have maintained their previous trends, noting an increase
in the rental rates of recent buildings, whereby the rental average varied between KD 12/-
and KD 13/- per square meter, with higher rents for elevated floors especially those with sea
view. In addition, the completion of many construction works in the city, such as the "Daw
Complex" which was officially inaugurated, has provided extra office surfaces for several
companies which limited the skyrocketing increases in office rental rates. Many other similar
projects with office buildings are expected to be completed in 2008 including the Mishal
Tower, 25th and 26th February Towers, the Safat Centre, Warbah, Al Arabia and Al Shira’a.
However, several giant shopping malls which are still under construction will considerably
increase, upon completion, the office rental area in 2009, in a way that supply will be higher
than the current local demand. This indeed might be an indicator for a future crisis related
to an inflated market offer in terms of office rental areas in 2009 and 2010, unless this
increase comes in line with a similar rise in demand and a radical change in the laws in
order to stir the economy and draw foreign investments into this sector.

On another scale, the price of commercial lands with allowed construction areas reaching
620% and 520%, has increased between 12.9% and 18.7%, bearing in mind the existence of
plots of land which have been licensed to increase the office area by an additional 400%,
which conveys an added value to the real estate varying from KD 2,500 and KD 3,500 per
square meter, to be added to its original price which also varies according to the land location.
The increase in prices registered was mainly due to investment lands within Kuwait City, the
latter having increased between 28% and 132% due to the speculations in the real estate
market pertaining to the switch in the exploitation purpose from investment to administrative
as it was done previously in the residential area of Sharq. In fact, the previous rental prices
in what was known as Sharq residential area mainly inhabited by families, have fallen,
giving place to new spaces which are being rented as Law and Consultancy offices at an
average rate worth double the value of the previous residential spaces.

As for the prices of land in the residential sector, they have witnessed an increase between
35.2% and 53.6%. The general trend was to bring down old buildings and replace them with
new villas. Another high increase was also observed in the prices of lands with special
locations scoring KD 1,000/- and sometimes even more.
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2. Hawalli Governorate:

The land prices in the Hawalli Governorate have maintained their positive trend in

2007, noting that the prices of lands for investment purposes have increased between

23.5% and 26.3%. This increase went in parallel with a 3.7% to 5.2% rise in the rates

of apartment rentals. All indicators show that the rental rate trend will remain the same

in the near future due to the increase in demand.

The price increase in the Hawalli Governorate was centered on commercial lands,

which have registered a rise of 29% to 33.9%. This has been reflected on the rental rates

per commercial meter for the ground, mezzanine and basement levels, which registered

an increase of 8.8% to 11.5%, reflecting the increase in demand on commercial plots

considering their scarcity and the surrounding population density. It goes without

saying that the area is characterized by its many under-construction commercial

buildings which are expected to be completed by 2008, such as the Symphony Complex,

Al Salmiya Olympia Complex, as well as Al Barrak Complex in Hawalli.

As for the prices of private housing lands, the sector has witnessed an increase in prices

ranking between 26.1% and 47.4% thus reflecting the increase in demand on private

housing lands while the availability of such lands remain limited.

In 2008, Hawalli Governorate will witness the inauguration of several hotels (IBIS,

Costa Del Sol, Golden Tulip, Symphony, Olympia) which, in addition to the rising

number of furnished apartment buildings, will enhance the region status as a touristic

and commercial hub in Kuwait due to the several appealing aspects including shopping

malls, trade centers and entertainment facilities.
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3. Al Farwaniya Governorate:
Land prices in Al Farwaniya Governorate have maintained their increase in 2007,
especially in the region of Jleeb Al Shuyoukh where the land prices went up 43.5%
comparing to an increase of 33.5% for Al Farwaniya, 36.6% for Khaitan and 37.1% for
Al Regae. This general increase in prices observed in the different regions surely reflects
the increase in demand on lands and the increase in rental rates which varied between
6.8% and 8.9%. It is noteworthy that all indicators show sustainability in the increase
of rental spaces during 2008 as the number of vacant apartments declines while the
number of occupancy increases by 97%.

The prices of commercial lands have maintained their increasing trend, knowing they
have registered a rise between 46.4% and 56.3%, which confirms the high demand on
commercial lands shown in the 8.8% to 18% increase on the rental rate of commercial
towers. In fact, the key-money rate for shops located on the ground floor have reached
record amounts ranking between KD 1500/- and KD 2000/- per square meter for shops
located on the main commercial street of Munawer, with even more elevated prices for
shops in special locations.

The Governorate of Al Farwaniya has witnessed the inauguration of the Avenues Complex
which is a landmark in Al Rai area. Indeed, this has positively influenced the price of
neighboring lands especially when the project is expected to be fully completed in 2008
which will reinforce the attractive status conveyed to the region when this complex first
opened. The governorate will also witness the openings of other malls and centers in
2008 such as the 360 Mall which will count as a landmark in the south Surra area
confirming the market trend towards commercial real estate.

On another note, the residential plots in the Governorate of Al Farwaniya have maintained
their increasing trend. Indeed, the increase in prices of residential plots reached between
26.5% and 27.3%. In 2007, the infrastructure of many residential areas in south Surra,
Eshbilyah and Al Farwaniya was completed, which added value to these plots. In parallel,
the industrial plots in Al Farwaniya governorate have witnessed successive increases in
prices due to the increase in demand and the authorization to the commercial exploitation
of its lands, especially with the rise of many new buildings in the regions of Al Shuwaikh,
Al Rai, Al Ardiya (Al Makhazen + Harafiya), thus enhancing their real estate value.
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4. Al Ahmadi Governorate:

The Governorate of Al Ahmadi has witnessed successive and consecutive increases in

the prices of land plots. The increase in prices of lands for investment purposes has

varied between 45.5% and 63.7% due to several factors including the partial availability

of the infrastructure in some regions, as some areas still lack public services. In fact,

the increase in demand – especially companies looking for residential areas for their

employees – has led the occupancy rate to register record rates compared to the region’s

land prices.

In addition, the Governorate witnessed increasing numbers of new buildings; hence

the Ministry of Electricity was no longer capable of catering the increasing needs of the

consumers, contrary to what the landlords had wished for. This stirred up the demand

on available apartments which also contributed in the increase of rental rates between

6.4% and 23.9%. The prices of commercial lands have also maintained their increasing

trend up to 40,6% from last year. This rise came in line with a 9.4% increase in the

rental prices of commercial towers.

Rotana Hotel was inaugurated in Al Fahaheel to confirm the area’s tendency to host

a large number of hotels in the near future within the governorate. Furthermore,

industrial lands have also registered a high increase in prices, especially in the areas

of Al Ahmadi, Al Fahaheel and Mina Abdullah, which have witnessed an increase in

prices valued at more than 40% compared to last year’s rates.
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5. Mubarak Al-Kabeer Governorate:

During 2007, Mubarak Al-Kabeer Governorate was most famous for the high increase

in prices of residential lands especially for the residential areas of Al Messila, Al Funaitees

and Abou Fatira, where the increase has scored between 51% and 70%. The highest

increase that was registered for the plots was of Al Messila residential area due to the

upcoming infrastructure project to be implemented in the region.

This increase, which is due partially to the bidding in the real estate market, has raised

questions about the future limit-price of real estate in the area, especially after providing

the area with the appropriate services, which will necessarily increase the prices of the

plots to almost reach Kuwait City rates. These rates are out of reach for newly formed

families, which indicates further pressure in the direction of the housing problem in

Kuwait.

The average price of lands for investment purposes in Al Messila (investment) area has

increased by 40%, noting that the area is still in serious need for an appropriate

infrastructure. The area has also witnessed a 125% increase in the price of lands at the

Abou Fatira handy-crafted area, compared to last year rates, due to the recent trend in

industrial and allowed handy craft investments as well as authorizing the broadening

of the exploitation purposes of the lands.
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6. Al Jahra Governorate

The Governorate of Al Jahra has witnessed an increase in the prices of its commercial

lands for investment purposes in 2007. On one hand, the prices of investment purpose

lands registered a 55.3% increase up from previous rates, reinforced by the completion

of the infrastructure services especially in sector 92, as well as providing the new

governorate commercial and administrative center with the necessary infrastructure

services, thus allowing a 96% increase in the previous rates on its commercial lands

in 2007. These prices are also expected to increase on the short and medium terms,

especially upon the completion of many real estate projects, in view of the many

appealing factors of the governorate such as: the population density; the new increase

in the commercial building surface in difference to what was done in the Marzouk Al

Mouteb Street; the new improved organization of the lands; and the availability of new

parking spaces which can be used as additional areas to contain people and cars.

The rental rates of apartments within the governorate have registered an increase of

11.6% up from last year, due to the increase in demand on the units. On the other hand,

many buildings are being transformed into health centers due to the increasing demand

on health services in the governorate, since the existing health centers do not meet with

the growing requirements. Furthermore, new residential areas were built including the

two suburbs of Jaber Al Ahmad and Saad Al Abdullah, which will also stir up the demand

on health and educational services, thus requiring early planning to contain the

expected increase on it now.

In the near future, the Saleel Al Jahra’s project will be inaugurated, providing a new

entertainment, cultural, commercial facility to this region, in addition to the existing

hotel and chalet complex serving the region and travelers going to Iraq and KSA.
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7. 2008 Real Estate Forecast

1. All indicators available at the Real Estate Evaluation

Department at Kuwait International Bank show that

the positive trend of the real estate market will be

maintained especially when it comes to the

investment, commercial and industrial sectors, with

variant performances for the residential sector

expected to reflect the market’s dynamics.

2. Regarding the investment sector, indicators show

an increase in the number of investors and an

improvement in revenues, with a stabilization of

the profit rate and an increase in the volume of real

estate loans and credit facilities. This also indicates

an increase in the value of real estate investments

in Kuwait.

3. Pertaining to the commercial sector, the demand

on commercial areas is expected to skyrocket due

to the scarcity of commercial lands, the improvement

in the national revenue and the purchase power

levels.

4. As for the industrial sector, the rise in prices is

expected to persist as well as that of rental rates in

comparison to current prices, thus reflecting the

increasing demand on industrial lands and its

scarcity especially after the cancellation of the

previous BOT projects.

5. The residential sector is expected to maintain their

price trends within the sixth ring road area of the

governorate, noting a relative increase in prices

which will vary according to demand.

6. As for the prices of residential lands in new areas,

and which still lack infrastructure, they are expected

to drop between 5% and 10% on the short term with

a potential to rise up again at the end of the year

due to the late and long governmental projects

which were meant to provide additional private

residences.

When examining and analyzing the factors influencing

the general economy, we can outline that the increase

in oil prices, the performance of the stock market and

the return of the investors to engage in long term

investments, which is considered a secured investment

with better returns, are still driving the real estate market

towards more growth and stability. 21
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Retail Banking Department

Paving the way for the conversion to a fully-commercial

bank working in accordance with the Islamic Sharia’a

rulings and provisions, the Retail Banking Department

(RBD) has made great efforts to ensure all transactions

associated with the range of new products so as to ensure

that all the Bank’s branches and channels are ready to

serve the customers, and to ensure that all operational

activities and operations are compliant with Sharia’a law

too . At the same time, the RBD in cooperation with other

departments of the Bank has endeavored to get the approval

of the Bank’s customers to convert their conventional

banking transactions to new transactions in line with

Islamic Sharia’a. This process has culminated in success

through "Tawarruq" and "Wakala" products.

Since the Bank began operating as an Islamic banking

institution under the new name "Kuwait International

Bank", it has promoted new products never offered before

to the clients, including, but not limited to, "Car

Murabaha", "Real Estate Murabaha", "Goods Murabaha",

"Car Ijara" and "Salsabeel". The aforementioned products

are related to assets. Regarding the liabilities, the Bank

has introduced the "Investment Deposits" (providing

customers with multiple options in terms of maturity

periods, ranging from one month to three, six or even

twelve months), in addition to the "Al Joud Deposit"

(characterized by a predetermined fixed profit on deposit

investment).

It is worth mentioning that before the Bank was converted,

that is from January until June 30, 2007, the RBD has

achieved 90% of its loan objectives and 115% of the overall

objectives associated to deposits that have been defined

for that period. Despite the prevailing market conditions

and the Bank’s focus on the conversion process, the RBD

has been able to make profits of up to about KD 12.9

million from conventional loan portfolio.

Second: Management’s Report
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A team, composed of staff members from RBD in

collaboration with the Human Resources Division, was

established to enhance the overall productivity of employees

as well as to encourage them to participate more broadly

and improve the standard of customer service. Other

priorities included staff training to improve skills and

develop sales methods and service quality. An intensive

training program was developed to assist all RBD staff

members in comprehending the principles and practices

of Islamic banking operations, providing an in-depth

training on various products and services compliant with

Sharia’a law. To ensure the transfer of knowledge and

skills to staff, specialized teams were formed, carrying out

field visits and inspecting all branches that have in turn

trained their staff.

In light of the conversion to the Islamic banking system

and the subsequent expected business growth, the RBD

has recruited qualified managers with requisite expertise

and competence in key positions. Special attention has

been paid to employ highly competent and skilled people

to be able to achieve the RBD fundamental objective,

namely the achievement of the highest level of customer

satisfaction and loyalty to the bank.

In 2007, the Retail Banking Department succeeded in

opening three branches in strategic geographical areas

targeting specific population distributions. This trend will

continue in 2008 to thoroughly identify potential sites

and open new channels. The RBD has also developed

professional growth plans aiming to increase assets and

liabilities as well as an additional income not included

in 2008 public budget, especially with the continued

growing demand for Islamic banking services. It has also

developed the "Mobile Sale Unit" to target and reach

potential customers in strategic locations, as well as to

enhance the level of customer service by covering specific

locations. In the beginning of the year customer-oriented

new services will be launched, including state of the art

"Call Center" and e-banking, in order to provide the most

advanced mechanisms that help increase the Bank’s

customer base and raise overall service standards.
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Commercial Banking Department

After the successful implementation of the conversion

to a banking institution operating in accordance with

the provisions of Islamic Sharia’a, most of the existing

commercial assets portfolios have been converted on

time to Sharia’a-Compliant assets. New Sharia’a-

compliant commercial assets worth KD 95 million have

been registered as of December 31, 2007. During the

year, Commercial Banking assets increased by 33%

which is 24% above 2007 budget.

New Islamic products within the deposits and assets

portfolio have been defined, such as "Murabaha", "Ijara",

"Istisnaa", “Wakala”, “Al Joud”, and “Wakala fil

Insha’a”.

After the conversion, the Commercial Banking

Department was able to expand its activities to target a

larger market than the previous limited real estate sector,

to include all other commercial market segments.

Accordingly, new sections have been developed to focus

better on the new market. A Credit Analysis Division has

been formed to enhance the evaluation process and

help focus on direct relations and business development.

Moreover, a new action strategy for the year 2008 has

been introduced to penetrate the market segments and

provide customers with Sharia’a-Compliant products

that were not available in the past.

Treasury Department

The Treasury Department has been able to achieve its

objectives corresponding to the assets / liabilities structure

during the transitional and post-transitional periods to

a fully-commercial Islamic Bank with firmness and

determination. The Treasury Department continued to

diversify its investment and financing relations with the

Bank’s customer base, as well as to establish a new

network of banking relationships with banks and

financial institutions for all investment and financing

activities within an integrated framework, which was

supposed to first maintain the funding base and protect

it at a better cost, and secondly exploit the funds surplus

at a higher returns on assets with relatively lower

monetary risk. The focus of the assets / liabilities

management during the transitional and post-

transitional periods was mainly on the following matters:

• Managing liquidity and funding gaps. During the
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transitional and post-transitional periods the Department

was able to maintain its funding base through the

conversion of customers’ conventional deposits to

Sharia’a-Compliant deposits through the Islamic

financial tool "Tawarruq", by obtaining power of attorney

from clients whereby the assets were converted to Islamic-

compliant assets. This demonstrates the strength of the

funding base in the last five years in view of the

distinguished banking relations, which will continue

after the conversion. Accordingly, the Department has

implemented one of the major banking operations by

converting a conventional Bank funding base to an

Islamic one in terms of the number of customers and

the size of branches, like other units of the Bank which

have also converted the conventional assets base to an

Islamic one.

• "Tawarruq" to convert the assets / liabilities structure

to Islamic banking operations. On the day of conversion,

the Department has implemented one of the largest

"Tawarruq" operations in the financial market, to convert

from a conventional Bank to an Islamic one. In this

regard, the Treasury Department bought KD 700 million

(equivalent to USD 1.35 billion) worth of metal

commodities from the international market in order to

convert the assets / liabilities structure to an Islamic-

Compliant structure. This powerful flow of "Tawarruq"

transactions showed the extent of the Bank’s internal

stability and expertise; this was an assessment of the

banking operation requirements in the modern era, in

terms of accuracy as well as financial adjustment

controls, internal electronic controls, and financial

accounting.

• The Department was able to formulate and implement

an investment strategy by focusing on the balance of

investment through diversifying assets in various

economic sectors, based on the risk return spectrum

specified in advance by taking into account the

investment maturity. The Department coordinated with

several specialized investment institutions selected to

manage part of the funds surplus of the Bank in high

liquidity investment. It also participated in initial

subscriptions in companies under establishment as a

strategic investor, and acquired 40% stake in Warbah

Takaful Insurance Company in 2007. The Bank will

participate by 10% in the establishment of an Islamic

Bank in Syria, which is considered a promising market

and characterized by an appropriate regulatory

legislation. The Department has also assessed Sharia’a

non-compliant investments through independent parties

/ advisers in preparation for gradually disposing of these

investments within pre-specified time frame.

Information Technology Department

In 2007, the Information Technology Department (ITD)

has successfully launched the first KIB Visa Electron

card, providing customers with direct facilities all over

the world while enhancing the range of valued products

and services offered by the Bank in line with the

international standards of the debit card market. The

ITD has also updated the Bank’s financial messages

service from "Swift" to "Swift 2” while adhering to

deadlines around the world, which aims to meet the

specific needs of customers through safer means.

Furthermore, the ITD has applied the MICR check

processing system at the support office and in all Retail

customer service branches while enhancing customer

experience internally and externally. In 2007, the main

focus was to modernize the IT infrastructure and upgrade

security and safety, resulting in the absence of any IT

breach during the year. The Department also sought to

strengthen IT controls resulting in the absence of any

IT pending issues. In order to improve customer service
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levels, Service Level Agreements (SLA) have been

concluded with all departments to ensure the settlement

of all applications, solve all problems and provide the

required support in accordance with agreed criteria.

On the other hand, manual reports have been

computerized in a way that all the Bank’s internal

reports as well as the Central Bank’s reports have become

available online. Thus, all involved employees can access

around 900 reports electronically.

With the beginning of 2008, the Department will

continue to provide support to all concerned business

departments, especially with regard to the preparation

of the Islamic credit card, the new contact center, and

the electronic banking project, as well as to provide the

Mobile Sale Unit with technical resources in order to

enable it to carry out satellite through banking

transactions. The Department will also continue to

develop and modernize the Management Information

Systems (MIS) by providing managers with the important

information necessary to help make the right decisions.

Risk Management Department

Risk Management Department (RMD) is an integral

part of the Bank’s operations and responsible for ensuring

that risks are kept within the allowed limits of the Bank.

The Department has focused its efforts toward the

conversion to an Islamic Bank and at the same time,

has developed regulations and procedures aimed at

managing risks that may arise once the conversion was

complete. More particularly, the Department has

contributed to the consolidation of the Bank’s policies

and procedures, and has conducted comprehensive tests

of all the new products of the Bank to ensure the desired

results of the whole planning process in terms of the

personnel as well as procedures and regulations

readiness. The Department has made efforts during the

year to design and develop credit risk management

system which will guarantee, when applied early in

2008, a modern and developed system for the

classification of the risks associated with the Bank’s

facilities in a harmonious and integrated way. The

Department has also pursued the unifying process of

all risks measurement and control systems, where

necessary, to focus more closely on the Bank’s risk assets

within the Islamic banking model.
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Among the responsibilities also entrusted to the

Department is the establishment of a framework for the

implementation of the five-year medium-term strategy

of the Bank; this strategy has been developed according

to the project management method to ensure delivery

by the required dates and application of key strategic

initiatives, in order to enable shareholders to achieve

their expected returns. Specifically, the Department is

responsible for addressing the following main types of risk:

Credit Risk: They are the most important risks facing

the Bank. They are dealt with by a continual assessment

at both levels of risk management and portfolio

optimization. Before granting any facilities, the issue is

studied in depth to ensure its compliance with the Central

Bank of Kuwait regulations and the Bank’s policies, and

that all required documents are completed to protect

the Bank’s interests. The periodic analysis of the entire

credit portfolio is fundamental to assess the orientation

of the portfolio credit quality as well as to early detect

any potential credit problems.

Market Risks: The Department uses the principle for

pricing according to market price in addition to the

model of value at risk that has been developed by the

Bank to measure and reduce all types of market risk

such as liquidity risk (when the Bank cannot meet all

the near-term liquidity needs at reasonable cost), and

foreign exchange rate risks (arising from foreign

exchange rate changes) and price risks (arising from

traded asset price changes).

Operational Risks: In recent years, operational risk

area has gained great importance to all banks due to

the related growing awareness, in addition to Basel II

guidelines, which recommend putting some capital

aside to cover operational risks. The Department has

continuously defined risk factors associated with different

transactions and has provided corrective measures to

mitigate those risks. The Department has also developed

a comprehensive framework for operational risks so as

to define, evaluate, control, reduce and manage

operational risks effectively in 2008.

Information Technology Security

IT security has become the foremost concern of all

operations that rely on information technology. The

Bank is particularly concerned with its IT systems’ safety

and security as well as with its own data integrity and

confidentiality. In this context, the Risk Management

Department has developed appropriate policies and

plans for data consolidation, in addition to developing

suitable mechanisms controlling risks associated with

IT to protect the Bank’s information systems.

Human Resource Department

Staff budget for 2007 was prepared along with a study

on employment rate at all business and supporting

departments, in addition to a study and restructure of

a number of sections (Investment, Marketing, Vendor

Relations, Electronic Banking, Administrative and

Technical Services, Real Estate Appraisal) to cope with

the conversion requirements and efficiently play their

role in serving customers. Upon this restructuring, a

number of changes have been integrated into some job

functions creating new positions, which summoned the

preparation of new job description / amendment to 48

posts, most of them being in the business departments.

The Department conducted a reevaluation of new posts

and granted the related functional degrees. Furthermore,

the Department implemented a number of projects in

the context of employment planning, improvement and

development performance, including:

1. Salary Survey Project organized by the Union of

      Kuwaiti Banks

2. Honoring Employees Project

3. Raising Staff Morale Project

4. Job Satisfaction Project
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The new appointments included 130 employees, thus

the total number of employees who working for the

Bank by the end of 2007 was 487 employees, whereas

the national employment by the end of December 2007

accounted for 51%. In the framework of staff capacity-

building programs, the Department implemented a

number  of  important  programs,  namely :

1. New Staff Orientation Program

2. Kuwaiti Fresh Graduate Trainee Program

3. Bank’s Staff Trainee Program to use the new

automated systems

The number of beneficiaries enrolled in those programs

amounted to 1,423 participants.

Legal Department

The Legal Department has played a prominent role in

the conversion process to an Islamic banking system by

achieving all necessary legal procedures to the competent

authorities from the launching of the idea of the

conversion until the issuance of the decision of the

Central Bank of Kuwait for the registration of the Bank

in the Islamic Banks Register. The Department has also

prepared documents, credentials and contracts related

to all customers’ accounts, and then proceeded to convert

all contracts concluded between the Bank and its clients,

both internal and documented contracts. This mission

has been accomplished straightforwardly at a record

time.

When the Bank started operating under the Islamic

banking system, the Department has begun preparing

and concluding the new contracts such as Ijara and

Murabaha, as such many Ijara transactions have been

completed confirming that the Bank went ahead with

the new banking system in accordance with the

provisions of Islamic Sharia’a. The Legal Department

has achieved satisfactory results by collecting large

amounts of debts.

Property Management

Property Management continued to perform its entrusted

operations, including the management and development

of investment, commercial and residential complexes

efficiently and proficiently. Among the most important

new projects that the Property Management will pay a

particular attention to, are:

1. Al-Fintas Complex development project, with the

approval of the Kuwait Investment Authority to

adopt Broken Company for project management

and economic consulting, based upon a

comprehensive administrative and technical study

to build a new residential tower and restore five

buildings in line with the new tower; construction

works will begin by the end of 2008. This project

will be the first for the Bank in developing one of

its managed properties in order to take advantage

of the new building rates.

2. Signing a portfolio management contract with

Global Investment House, in view of the Property

Management’s expertise and reputation in the field.

3. Moving forward with the amendment and increase

of rental rates of some properties commensurate

with the age, the status and the location of the

property compared with the real estate market rates.

Economic Research and Regulatory Relations

Believing in the importance of activating the role of

research, studies and regulatory relations, the Bank’s

Management has established an Economic Research

and Regulatory Relations Division, with the aim of

providing technical support to the Bank’s senior

management and the various other departments. The

Division consists of the two following units:

1. Economic Research and Studies Unit:

The Bank gives special attention to economic and

financial research and studies considering the great

importance of financial and economic data in providing

technical support for the Bank’s decision makers at all

functional levels. One of the basic objectives of the Unit

is to develop research and studies, monitoring and

forecasting the conditions of the various economic

sectors that the Bank is interested to work in and compete

with other parties; the Unit also provides the concerned

departments of the Bank with studies and research in

a specific economic area, activity or sector; it also

represents the Bank at economic conferences and

meetings.  In 2007, the Unit undertook various activities

mainly in presenting meetings and conferences to

executives on local and Gulf economic developments

and projections. The Unit also prepared a study on the

auto market in Kuwait, and contributed in the

preparation of the feasibility study for the new branches;

it also contributed to a working paper on the Bank’s

experience in real estate finance at the symposium

organized by the Arab Federation of Gulf States under

the theme of "The Role of Specialized Financial

Institutions in Supporting the Private Sector in the GCC

Countries", and another working paper on the Bank’s

conversion experience at the symposium organized by

the Institute of Banking Studies.

2. Regulatory Relations Unit:

Given the importance attached by the Bank regarding

its commitment to the guidelines of the Central Bank

of Kuwait as soon as required, a Regulatory Relations

Unit has been established, endowed with the necessary

A N N U A L  R E P O R T
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competencies to coordinate between the different

divisions of the Bank regarding the requirements of

the Central Bank. The Unit is also considered a reference

point for all queries and clarifications requested from

the Bank’s divisions concerning the implementation

of the Central Bank’s guidelines, where the Unit serves

as a link between the Bank’s divisions and the Central

Bank’s specialists, which has proved effective in meeting

any requirements of the Central Bank as required in

a timely and accurate manner.

In 2007, Regulatory Relations had a key role despite

its recent inception, by effectively contributing in the

following issues:

1. Coordinating with the concerned divisions about

all conversion practices and procedures relating

to the Central Bank’s requirements;

2. Contributing to a great extent in building a culture

among the staff of the concerned divisions in order

to be familiar with and updated on the Central

Bank’s regulatory requirements;

3. One of the most important initiatives that had an

effective impact, was the explanation and

clarification of any queries from the concerned

divisions about the implementation mechanism

of all regulations and instructions issued by the

Central Bank.

A N N U A L  R E P O R T
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2006

9.491

11.7

10.5

1.2%

6.3%

2007

17.982

23.3

20.0

2.1%

12.0%

10.510.5

20.020.0

2006 2007

11.711.7

23.323.3

2006 2007 31

* The Board of Directors recommended cash dividends by 10%

  and 10% bonus shares.

Achievements Realized During the Year

KD 17.9 Million
KIB Profits for 2007

Most Significant Indicators of the Financial Results

Net Profit of the Year (KD Million)

Earning per Share (E/PS)

Distributions (fils *)

Return on Assets (ROA)

Return on Equity (ROE)

A N N U A L  R E P O R T
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E/P Share (fils)
99% Growth

Dividends (fils)
91% Growth
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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kuwait International Bank K.S.C. (Formerly Kuwait Real Estate Bank K.S.C.)
(“the Bank”), which comprise the balance sheet as at December 2007 and the Statement of income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted for use by the State of Kuwait. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with International Standards of Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Bank as of 31 December
2007 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted for use by the State of Kuwait.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, in our opinion proper books of accounts have been kept by the Bank and the financial statements, together with the
contents of the report of the Board of directors relating to these financial statements, are in accordance therewith. We further report
that we have obtained all the information and explanations that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the financial
statements incorporate all information that is required by Commercial Companies Law of 1960, as amended and by the Bank’s
articles of association, that an inventory was duly carried out and that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no violations of
the Commercial Companies Law of 1960, as amended, nor of the articles of association have occurred during the year ended
31 December 2007 that might have had a material effect on the business of the Bank or on its financial position.

We further report that, during the course of our audit, we have not become aware of any material violations of the provisions of
Law No 32 of 1968, as amended, concerning currency, the Central Bank of Kuwait and the organisation of banking business, and
its related regulations during the year ended 31 December 2007.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KUWAIT INTERNATIONAL BANK K.S.C.

16 January 2008 Kuwait

Bader A. Al Wazzan
Licence No. 62-A
Pricewaterhouse Coopers

Dr Shuaib A. Shuaib
Licence No 33-A
Albazie & Co.
Member of RSM International
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3

4

5

6

6

7

7

8

9

10

11

11

12

13

14

14

14

14

13

19,291

129,298

111,635

-

483,430

11,261

31,937

150

13,843

2,712

803,557

79,173

-

563,023

18,829

661,025

85,729

49,480

18,673

7,072

4,132

8,356

4,854

9,478

187,774

(45,242)

142,532

803,557

11,289

4,946

267,379

546,469

27,325

17,511

44,364

9,741

15,255

3,583

947,862

198,173

571,833

1,504

18,500

790,010

85,729

49,480

20,558

7,072

9,572

8,356

4,854

17,473

203,094

(45,242)

157,852

947,862

33
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Note

(KD ‘000)

2007 2006

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks and financial institutions

Treasury and Central Bank bonds

Due from banks and other financial institutions

Financing receivables

Loans and advances

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Investments available for sale

Investments in associates

Property and equipment

Other assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Liabilities

Due to banks and other financial institutions

Depositors' accounts

Customer deposits

Other liabilities

Total Liabilities

Shareholders' Equity

Share capital

Share premium

Statutory reserve

Voluntary reserve

Fair valuation reserve

Revaluation surplus

Gain on sale of treasury shares

Retained earnings

Treasury shares

Total Shareholders' Equity

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

The accompanying notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of the financial statements.

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 January 2008 and signed on its behalf by:

Abdul Wahab Mohammad Al-Wazzan
Chairman

Adil Ahmad
General Manager

Balance Sheet
31 December 2007
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15

16

17

18

19

20

21

29,658

29,643

(18,434)

(17,326)

23,541

2,144

2,617

1,010

416

29,728

(9,719)

(3,681)

(988)

3,501

(10,878)

18,850

(170)

(463)

(10)

(225)

17,982

       23.30

-

58,461

(32,530)

-

25,931

7,458

2,981

202

62

36,634

(7,845)

(3,735)

(770)

(14,256)

(26,606)

10,028

(90)

(242)

-

(205)

9,491

       11.73

Note

(KD ‘000)

2007 2006

STATEMENT OF INCOME
Year ended 31 December 2007

INCOME

Murabaha and other Islamic financing income

Interest income

Interest expense

Distribution to depositors

Net financing income

Investment income

Net fees and commission income

Net gain from foreign exchange

Other income

EXPENSES

Staff cost

General and administrative expenses

Depreciation

Impairment and other provision

Operating profit before deductions

Contribution to Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences

National Labor Support Tax

Zakat

Director’s remuneration

Net profit for the year

Earnings per share (fils)

The accompanying notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of the financial statements.

A N N U A L  R E P O R T
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17,670

1,003

18,673

18,673

1,885

20,558

7,072

7,072

7,072

7,072

4,082

(10)

60

-

50

-

50

-

4,132

4,132

5,440

5,440

-

5,440

9,572

8,356

8,356

8,356

8,356

2,041

2,813

2,813

2,813

4,854

4,854

4,854

11,518

(10,528)

9,491

9,491

(1,003)

9,478

9,478

-

-

17,982

17,982

(8,102)

(1,885)

17,473

(15,353)

(40,582)

10,693

(45,242)

(45,242)

(45,242)

160,067

(40,582)

10,693

(10)

60

2,813

2,863

9,491

12,354

142,532

142,532

5,440

5,440

17,982

23,422

(8,102)

-

157,852

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Year ended 31 December 2007

Share
capital

Share
premium

Statutory
reserve

Voluntary
reserve

Fair
valuation
reserve

Revaluation
surplus

Gain on sale
of treasury

shares

Retained
earnings

Treasury
shares

Total

(KD ‘000)

Balance as at 31 December 2005

Issue of bonus shares

Purchase of treasury shares

Sale of treasury shares

75,201

10,528

85,729

85,729

85,729

49,480

49,480

49,480

49,480Balance as at 31 December 2007

Balance as at 31 December 2006

Changes in fair value of investments available for sale

Reversal on sale of investments available for sale

Gain on sale of treasury shares

Total recognized income
Transfer to reserves

Net gains not recognized in the statement of income

Net profit for the year

The accompanying notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Balance as at 31 December 2006

Changes in fair value of investments available for sale

Net gains not recognized in the statement of income

Net profit for the year

Total recognized income

Cash dividend – 2006

Transfers to reserves

A N N U A L  R E P O R T
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17,982

(4,134)
(1,869)
(1,010)

(73)
(202)

988
4,349

16,031

(31,937)
(549,950)

456,105
(871)

119,000
-

571,833
(561,519)

(116)
18,576

124,352
(8,800)

2,398
(8,365)

1,743
(9,600)
(2,400)

4,134
1,869

105,331

(8,102)
-
-

(8,102)
115,805
130,926
246,731

9,491

(1,003)
(2,207)

(45)
(5,233)

(18)
770

14,258
16,013

-
-

(2,211)
286

16,542
(21,600)

-
58,134

938
68,102

(31,910)
-

19,868
(13,888)

89
-

(2,016)
1,003
2,207

(24,647)

-
(40,582)

13,506
(27,076)

16,379
114,547
130,926

A N N U A L  R E P O R T

KUWAIT INTERNATIONAL BANK

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net profit for the year

Adjustments for:

Profit on Treasury and Central Bank bonds

Dividend income

Unrealized foreign exchange gain

Net gain from investments at fair value through profit or loss

Net gain from investments available for sale

Depreciation

Impairment and other provisions

Operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Due from Banks’ and financial institutions

Financing receivables

Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Due to banks and other financial institutions

Certificate of deposits

Depositors’ accounts

Customer deposits

Other liabilities

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Treasury and Central Bank bonds

Purchase of investments at fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds from sale of investments at fair value through profit or loss

Purchase of investments available for sale

Proceeds from sale of investments available for sale

Purchase of investment in associate

Purchase of equipment

Profit received on treasury and Central Bank bonds

Dividend received

Net cash from / (used) in investment activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Dividends paid

Purchase of treasury shares

Proceeds from sale of treasury shares

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (Note 22)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended 31 December 2007

(KD ‘000)

2007 2006

The accompanying notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2007

1. Incorporation and activities

Kuwait International Bank K.S.C. (formerly Kuwait Real Estate Bank K.S.C.) (The Bank) is a public shareholding Company
incorporated in Kuwait on 13 May 1973 as specialized bank and is regulated by the Central Bank of Kuwait.

On 25 December 2006 the Bank’s shareholders’ amended the articles of association of the Bank to operate in accordance
with Islamic Sharia’a and changed the name of the Bank to “Kuwait International Bank K.S.C.”.

In June 2007, the Central Bank of Kuwait (CBK) licensed the Bank to operate as an Islamic bank from 1 July 2007. From that
date, all activities are conducted in accordance with Islamic Sharia’a, as approved by the Bank’s Fatwa and Sharia’a Supervisory
Board.

The registered office of the Bank is at West Tower – Joint Banking Center, P.O. Box 22822, Safat 13089, Kuwait.

2. Significant accounting policies

a. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as adopted for use by the State of Kuwait for financial services institutions regulated by the CBK. These regulations
require adoption of all IFRS except for the IAS 39 requirement for collective provision, which has been replaced by the CBK
requirement for a minimum general provision as described under the accounting policy for impairment and uncollectibility of
financial assets.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis of measurement as modified by the revaluation
of financial assets classified as “at fair value through profit or loss” or “available for sale”, all derivative contracts and land and
buildings.

The financial statements have been presented in Kuwaiti Dinars rounded off to the nearest thousand and are subject to the
approval of the shareholders at their Annual General Meeting.

The accounting policies are consistent with those used in the previous year except as follows -

i) IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures; and
ii) Amendments to International Accounting Standard (IAS 1) – Capital disclosures.

As a result, certain additional disclosures have been made that will enable users to evaluate:
i) the significance of financial instruments for the Bank’s financial position and performance
ii) the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments to which the Bank is exposed
   during the year and at the reporting date, and how the Bank manages those risks and
iii) the Bank’s objectives, policies and process for managing capital.

The following IASB standards and Interpretations, though issued, are not yet mandatory and have not yet been adopted by
the Bank:

IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”

The application of IFRS 8, which will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009, will result in disclosure
of information to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business activities in which the Bank engages and the economic
environments in which it operates.

IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” (Revised).

A N N U A L  R E P O R T
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The application of IAS 1 (Revised), which will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009, will impact
the presentation of financial statements to enhance the usefulness of the information presented.

b. Classification, recognition, de-recognition and measurement of financial instruments

(i) Classification

In accordance with IAS 39, the Bank classifies financial instruments as "at fair value through profit or loss", "loans and receivables"
or "available for sale". Financial liabilities are classified as other than "at fair value through profit or loss". Management determines
the appropriate classification of each instrument at the time of acquisition.

Loans and receivables

These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.

On transformation to an Islamic bank the Bank offers Sharia’a compliant products and services such as Murabaha, Istisnaa
and Ijara, which are classified as finance receivables.

Murabaha is a sale agreement for commodities and real estate to “a promise to buy” customer, at a price comprising of cost
plus agreed profit, after the Bank has acquired the asset.

Istisnaa is a sale contract between a contract owner and a contractor whereby the contractor based on an order from the
contract owner undertakes to manufacture or other wise acquire the subject matter of the contract according to specifications,
and sells it to the contract owner for an agreed upon price and method of settlement whether that be in advance, by installments
or deferred to a specific future date.

Ijara is a finance lease agreement between the Bank and customers.

At fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets "at fair value through profit or loss" are further divided into two sub categories: "held for trading" and "designated
at fair value through profit or loss at inception". A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term or if they are managed and their performance is evaluated and reported internally on a
fair value basis in accordance with a documented investment strategy. Financial assets "at fair value through profit or loss"
are subsequently remeasured at fair value and gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are included in the income
statement.

Available for sale

These are non-derivative financial assets not included in any of the above classifications and are principally acquired to be
held for an indefinite period of time; which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in rates of return or equity
prices.

Financial liabilities other than at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities which are not held for trading are classified as “other than at fair value through profit or loss”.

On transformation to an Islamic bank, financial liabilities include depositor’s accounts created by Mudaraba and Wakala
contracts. Mudaraba represents an agreement whereby the Bank and the customer share an agreed percentage of any profit
earned on customers’ investments as agreed. Wakala represents an agreement whereby the Bank agrees to provide a certain
rate of return for the transactions entered on behalf of the customer.

Mudaraba and Wakala payables are subsequently re-measured and carried at amortized cost using the effective yield method,
finally determined at the end of each year.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2007
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(ii) Recognition and de-recognition

A financial asset or a financial liability is recognized when the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

A financial asset is de-recognized (in whole or in part) where:

• the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired, or

• the Bank retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without
  material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement or

• the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all the
  risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
  but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Bank’s
continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Bank
could be required to repay.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Where an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised using settlement date accounting i.e. the date that the
Bank receives or delivers the assets. Changes in fair value between the trade date and settlement date are recognised in the
income statement, or in equity in accordance with the policy applicable to the related instrument. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by
regulations or conventions in the market place.

(iii)Measurement

All financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs are included only for those financial instruments
that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

On subsequent re-measurement, financial assets classified as “at fair value through profit or loss” are carried at fair value with
resultant unrealised gains or losses arising from changes in fair value included in the income statement. “Loans and receivables”
are carried at amortised cost using the effective yield method less any provision for impairment. Those classified as “available
for sale” are subsequently measured and carried at fair values. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
of financial assets classified as “available for sale” are taken to fair valuation reserve in shareholders’ equity. When the “available
for sale” asset is disposed of, or impaired, the related accumulated fair value adjustments previously recognised in equity are
transferred to the income statement as realized gains or losses.

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted instruments are measured
at cost less impairment loss, if any. “Financial liabilities other than at fair value through profit or loss” are carried at amortised
cost using the effective rate of return method.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2007
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(iv)Fair values

Fair values of quoted instruments are based on quoted closing bid prices or using the current market rate of return for that
instrument. Fair values for unquoted instruments are based on net asset values provided by fund managers or are estimated
using applicable price/earnings or price/cash flow ratios refined to reflect the specific circumstances of the issuer. The fair value
of investments in mutual funds, unit trusts or similar investment vehicles are based on the last published bid price.
The fair value of unquoted financial instruments is determined by reference to the market value of a similar investment, or the
expected discounted cash flows, brokers’ quotes, or other appropriate valuation models.

The fair value of financial instruments carried at amortised cost is estimated by discounting future cash flows at the current
market rate of return for similar financial instruments.

The fair value of a derivative is the equivalent of the unrealised gain or loss from marking to market the derivative using
prevailing market rates or internal pricing models.

(v) Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective evidence that a specific financial
asset or a group of similar financial assets may be impaired as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of those assets and that event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets, that can be reliably measured. If such evidence exists, any impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement.

Impairment is determined as follows:

a) for financial assets with fixed rates of return, carried at amortised cost, impairment is the difference between the carrying
         value and the present value of the estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
         discounted at the original effective interest rate; and for financial assets with variable interest rates, carried at amortised
         cost, discounted at the current effective rate of return;

b) for financial assets carried at fair value, impairment is the difference between cost and fair value, less any impairment
         loss previously recognised in the income statement;

c) for financial assets carried at cost, impairment is the difference between the carrying value and present value of future
         cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

For available for sale equity investments, reversals of impairment losses are recorded as increases in fair valuation reserve
through equity.

In addition, in accordance with CBK instructions, a minimum general provision is made on all credit facilities net of certain
categories of collateral, to which CBK instructions are applicable and not subject to specific provision.

In March 2007, the CBK issued a circular amending the basis of making minimum general provisions on facilities changing
the rate from 2% to 1% for cash facilities and 0.5% for non cash facilities. The required rates were to be applied effective from
1 January 2007 on the net increase in facilities, net of certain restricted categories of collateral during the reporting period.
The minimum general provision in excess of the present 1% for cash facilities and 0.5% for non cash facilities would be retained
as a general provision until a further directive from the Central Bank of Kuwait is issued.

Financial assets are written off when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

(vi)Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amounts reported in the balance sheet only when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the Bank intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2007
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(vii) Collateral pending sale

The Bank occasionally acquires property in settlement of certain financing receivables and loans and advances. Such property
is stated at the lower of the carrying value of the related financing receivables and loans and advances and the current fair
value of such assets. Gains or losses on disposal, and revaluation losses, are recognised in the income statement.

c) Investments in associates

Associates are those enterprises in which the Bank has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and operating
policy decisions. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised
at cost.

The Bank’s share of its associates post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When the Bank’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any unsecured receivables, the Bank does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

d) Property and equipment

Freehold land and premises are revalued annually and are carried net of accumulated depreciation and/ or accumulated
impairment loss.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation are credited to revaluation surplus in statement of changes in shareholders’
equity. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged against revaluation surplus directly in equity;
all other decreases are charged to the income statement.

The useful life of premises is estimated to be 17 years.

Computer and other equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss. Depreciation
is charged on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 years.

e) Post employment benefits

The Bank is liable under Kuwait Labour Law to make payments under defined benefit plans to employees at cessation of
employment. The defined benefit plan is unfunded and is based on the liability that would arise on involuntary termination of
all employees on the balance sheet date. This basis is considered to be a reliable approximation of the present value
of this liability.

f) Treasury shares

The cost of the Bank’s own shares purchased, including directly attributable costs, is recognised as a change in equity. Gains
or losses arising on sale are separately disclosed under equity and in accordance with the instructions of Central Bank of
Kuwait; these amounts are not available for distribution. These shares are not entitled to any cash dividends.

g) Revenue recognition
Income from Murabaha and Istisnaa are recognised on an effective yield basis which is established on initial recognition of
the asset and is not revised subsequently.

Income from Ijara is recognized over the term of the Ijara agreement so as to yield a constant rate of return on the net investment
outstanding.

Interest income and expenses related to conventional banking services (before conversion) are recognized in the income
statement for all interest bearing instruments using the effective yield method.

The calculation of the effective yield or interest rate includes all fees paid or received, transactions costs and discounts or
premiums that are an integral part of the effective yield or interest rate. Fees and commission income that relate mainly to
transaction and service fees are recognised as the related services are performed.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. Other fees are recognized as the services
are provided

Once a financial instrument categorised as “finance receivables” is written down to its estimated recoverable amount, related
income is thereafter recognised on the unimpaired portion based on the original effective yield rate that was used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the recoverable amount.

h) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when, as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required
to settle a present, legal or constructive obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.

i) Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at rates of exchange ruling at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies outstanding at the year-end are translated into Kuwaiti Dinars at rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date and forward foreign exchange contracts are valued at the prevailing forward rate of exchange. Any resultant
gains or losses are taken to the income statement.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Translation difference on non-monetary items classified as “at fair value through
profit or loss” are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss in the income statement whereas, those on non-monetary items
classified as “available for sale” financial assets are included in “fair valuation reserve” in the statement of changes in
shareholders’ equity.

j) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and balances with banks, deposits with banks and other financial institutions and
short term Murabaha with original maturity up to three months from the date of placement.

k) Dividends on ordinary shares

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved by the Bank’s
shareholders.

Dividends for the year that are approved after the balance sheet date are disclosed as an event after the balance sheet date.

l) Significant accounting judgments and estimates

a) Judgements

In the process of applying the Bank’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

(i)   Classification of investments

On acquisition of an investment, the Bank decides whether it should be classified as "at fair value through profit or loss" or
"available for sale".

The Bank classifies investments as ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ if they are acquired primarily for the purpose of short
term profit making or if they are managed and their performance is evaluated on a reliable fair value basis in accordance with
a documented investment strategy. All other investments are classified as "available for sale".

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2007
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(ii) Impairment of investments

The Bank treats "available for sale" equity investments as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline
in their fair value below their cost. The determination of what is "significant" or "prolonged" requires significant judgement. In
addition, the Bank also evaluates among other factors, normal volatility in the share price for quoted equities and the future
cash flows and the discount factors for unquoted equities. Impairment may be considered appropriate when there is evidence
of deterioration in the financial position of the investee, industry and sector performance; changes in technology and operational
and financing cash flows.

b) Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below:

Impairment losses on financing receivables and loans and advances and investments in debt instruments
The Bank reviews problem loans and financing receivables and investments in debt instruments on a quarterly basis to assess
whether a provision for impairment should be recorded in the income statement. In particular, considerable judgment by
management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of provisions
required.

Valuation of unquoted equity investments

Valuation techniques for unquoted investment securities is based on estimates such as expected cash flows discounted at
current rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk characteristics; recent arm’s length market transactions; current
fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same; or valuation models.
Any changes in these estimates and assumptions as well as the use of different, but equally reasonable estimates and
assumptions may have an impact on the carrying value of loan losses and fair values of unquoted equity investments.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2007
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These financial instruments are issued by the Central Bank of Kuwait on behalf of the Ministry of Finance. They mature within a period not
exceeding twelve months. These instruments were converted into murabaha instruments to comply with Islamic Sharia’a.

1,532

885

8,872

-

11,289

1,991

953

1,347

15,000

19,291

4,946

-

4,946

-

129,298

129,298

3. Cash and Balances with Banks and Financial Institutions

Cash balances

Dues from banks and financial institutions

Balances with Central Bank of Kuwait

Money at call and short notice

(KD ‘000)

2007 2006

(KD ‘000)

2007 2006

4. Treasury and Central Bank bonds

Treasury bonds

Central Bank of Kuwait bonds
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5- Due From Banks and Other Financial Institutions

105,269

-

130,173

31,937

-

267,379

-

20,000

-

-

91,635

111,635

Murabaha finance with other banks and financial institutions - less than 90 days
Murabaha finance with other banks and financial institutions - more than 90 days
Deposits with other Banks and financial institutions

(KD ‘000)

2007 2006

6- Financing Receivables and Loans and advances

Financing Receivables comprise of facilities extended to the customers to the Bank in the form of Murabaha, Istisnaa and Ijara
contracts. Wherever necessary, financing receivables are secured by acceptable forms of collateral to mitigate the related
credit risk. Financing receivables and loans and advances comprise the following:

473,387

88,179

834

562,400

(6,157)

556,243

(9,774)

546,469

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(KD ‘000)

2007 2006

(A) Financing receivables

Murabaha Receivable

Ijara Receivables

Other receivables

Less: deferred profit

Net receivable

Provision for impairment

39,358

17,104

56,462

(29,137)

27,325

386,506

139,193

525,699

(42,269)

483,430

(KD ‘000)

2007 2006

(B) Loans and advances

This represents facilities to the Bank’s customers which are in accordance with conventional banking contracts that remain
outstanding after conversion to an Islamic Bank. The Bank plans to transform these facilities to comply with Islamic Sharia’a.
The interest related to these loans were suspended and charged to liability (note no 12).

Corporate loans

Consumer and installment loans

Less: Provision for impairment

Murabaha finance with Central Bank of Kuwait
Deposit with Central Bank of Kuwait
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37,537

(26)

(1,096)

5,854

42,269

9,106

-

-

(556)

8,550

28,431

(26)

(1,096)

6,410

33,719

42,269

(145)

-

(3,213)

38,911

8,550

-

-

1,224

9,774

33,719

(145)

-

(4,437)

29,137

Movement in provision for impairment:
(KD ‘000)

2007 2006

Specific
provision

General
provision

Total
Specific
provision

General
provision

Total

Balance at beginning of the year

Ceded to the Central Bank of Kuwait

Provisions written off

Provision (no longer required)/

 charged - (Note 20)

Balance at end of the year

The policy of the Bank for calculation of the impairment provision for financing receivables and loans and advances complies
in all material respects with the specific provision requirements of the Central Bank of Kuwait. The analysis of provision set
out above is based on the requirements of the Central Bank of Kuwait and in accordance with the Central Bank of Kuwait
instructions, a minimum general provision of 1% on all credit facilities, net of certain restricted categories of collateral and not
subject to specific provision made.

Under the terms of Amiri Decree Nos. 32 of 1992, 41 of 1993 and subsequent amendments, any recovery of provisions made
as at December 31, 1991 on loans and advances and financing receivables and investments as at that date, which were not
purchased under these decrees, are required to be ceded to the Central Bank of Kuwait. As at 31 December 2007 such
recoveries amounted to KD 145 thousand (2006: KD 26 thousand).

At 31 December 2007 financing receivables and loans and advances on which normal profits or interest is not being accrued,
or is suspended, amounted to KD 61,055 thousand (2006: KD 80,830 thousand). Unrecognised profit or interest relating to
such financing receivables and loans and advances amounted to KD 22,687 thousand (2006: KD 20,033 thousand).

Impaired financing receivables and loans and advances divided between facilities granted pre-invasion and post liberation as
required by the Central Bank of Kuwait as follows:

2,488

2,488

2,633

2,633

58,567

26,649

78,197

31,086

61,055

29,137

80,830

33,719

2007

Financing receivables and loans and advances

Specific provisions

Pre-invasion Post liberation Total

(KD ‘000)

2006

Loans and advances

Specific provisions

A N N U A L  R E P O R T
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5,073

12,438

17,511

3,253

28,144

12,967

44,364

6,761

4,500

11,261

2,111

18,260

11,566

31,937

-

-

141

9,600

9,741

-

-

150

-

150

50

50

20

40

A N N U A L  R E P O R T
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(KD ‘000)

2007 2006

7- Investments

(KD ‘000)

2007 2006

Investments at fair value through profit or loss:

Quoted securities designated at fair value at inception

Quoted securities held for trading

Investments available for sale:

Unquoted funds

Unquoted securities

Investment sukuk

Investments include conventional investments of KD 17,767 thousand. The Bank's Fatwa and Sharia’a Supervisory Board, has
instructed the Bank to dispose these investments and to donate any realized gains to charity. Unrealized gains or losses till
disposal are included in other liabilities.

8- Investments in Associates

The Financial Group of Kuwait KSCC

Kuwait Projects Company for

Contracting and Building SAK (Closed)

Pearl Holding Company Luxembourg (SA)

Warba Takaful Insurance

Kuwait

Kuwait

Luxembourg

Kuwait

Country of
incorporation

Banking & Investment

Insurance

Principal
activity

% of
 holding

The movement in the carrying value of investment in associates is as follows:

150

9,600

(9)

-

9,741

7,008

-

(6,856)

(2)

150

(KD ‘000)

2007 2006

Balance at beginning of the year

Purchase of investment in associate

Provision for impairment of investment in associate

Share of loss from associate

Balance at end of the year

The Bank has made a full provision of KD 11.226 million (31 December 2006 - KD 11.226 million) against its investment in
the Financial Group of Kuwait K.S.C.C. (FGK). As of 31 December 2007 no reliable information is available about the financial
position of this associate.

During the year the Bank acquired 40% of Warba Takaful Insurance Company K.S.C.C. for KD 9.6 million. Based on information
available with the Bank, the fair value of the associate’s assets and liabilities approximates the cost of the acquisition.

Financial institution

Contracting
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9- Property and equipment

Freehold land and premises were revalued on 31 December 2007 using the lower of the values determined by two external
valuers. The valuation was not significantly different from the carrying value and accordingly no revaluation adjustments have
been made during the year.

142,665

1,015

368

54,125

-

198,173

-

-

4,817

41,686

32,670

79,173

(KD ‘000)

2007 2006
10- Due To Banks and Other Financial Institutions

Murabaha payable

Wakala payable

Current and call accounts from banks

Term Financing

Time deposits with banks and other financial institutions

Term financing represents borrowings denominated in Kuwaiti Dinars and United States Dollars from foreign and local banks
and are repayable over a period ranging from 3 to 5 year and are classified as “other than at fair value through profit or loss”.

Depositors' accounts are deposits received from customers under Mudaraba and Wakala contracts.

Customer Deposits due under conventional banking contracts will be repaid upon maturity.

Depositor’s accounts and customer deposits are classified as “other than at fair value through profit or loss”.

11- Depositors’ Accounts and Customer deposits

12- Other liabilities

4,828

433

2,979

10,260

18,500

7,588

-

3,343

7,898

18,829

(KD ‘000)

2007 2006

Depositors’ profit payable

Donation payable

Provision on non-cash credit facilities

Others

Donation payable represents interest income less interest expense on facilities, provided to the Bank’s customers on conventional
banking terms. In accordance with the directions of the Bank’s Fatwa and Sharia’a Supervisory Board, this amount has been
transferred to donations payable as these customers have not committed to transform their facilities to Islamic Sharia’a compliant
products.

13- Shareholders’ Equity

a) Share capital
The authorized, issued and paid up capital of the Bank comprises of 857,294,770 ordinary shares of 100 fils each (December
31, 2006 – 857,294,770 shares of 100 fils each).

b) Cash dividend paid
At the shareholders’ annual general meeting held on 20 March 2007, the shareholders approved payment of a cash dividend
of 10.5 fils per share for the year ended 31 December 2006 proposed by the Board of Directors.

c) Proposed dividends
The Board of Directors proposed issuance of bonus shares amounting to 85,759,588 share fils 100 per share of fils 100 per
share in the rate of 10 shares for each 100 share for the financial year ended 31 December 2007 (2006:N:1) and cash dividends
of fils 10 per share for 2007 (2006:10.5)
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85,651

      9.99%

45,242

58,242

85,651

      9.99%

45,242

59,099
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d) Treasury shares

Number of treasury shares ('000)

Percentage of treasury shares

Cost of shares (KD '000)

Market value of shares (KD '000)

The Board of Directors has been given the authority to purchase treasury shares up to a maximum of 10% of the share capital
of the Bank.

14- Reserves

In accordance with the Law of Commercial Companies and the Bank’s Articles of Association, 10% of the Bank’s profit for the
year is transferred to statutory reserve.  Distribution of the statutory reserve is limited to the amount required to enable the
payment of a dividend of 5% of share capital in years when retained earnings are not sufficient for the payment of a dividend
of that amount.

The balances in share premium and gain on sale of treasury shares cannot be distributed.

The revaluation surplus represents the surplus of market value over carrying value of freehold land and premises owned by
the Bank. The balance in this reserve is directly transferred to retained earnings on disposal of the underlying assets.

2007 2006

27,695

1,963

29,658

-

-

-

15- Murabaha and other Islamic financing Income

(KD ‘000)

2006From
1 July 2007

Income from Murabaha

Income from Ijara

46,129

6,864

5,468

58,461

22,640

4,021

2,982

29,643

Loans and advances

Treasury and Central Bank of Kuwait, bonds and other investments

Placements with banks

16- Interest Income
(KD ‘000)

2006Up to
30 June 2007

Financing receivables and loans and advances above includes on amount of KD 55 thousand (2006:Nil) representing adjustment
arising from revised estimates of future cash flows discounted at the original contracted rate of return from the performing portfolio
of financing receivables and loans and advances whose terms have been modified during the year.
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17- Interest expense

27,200

5,085

245

32,530

13,701

4,578

155

18,434

(KD ‘000)

2006Up to
30 June 2007

Time deposits

Borrowings – banks and financial institutions

Savings and call accounts

2

4.75

4.9375

5.0625

5.1875

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1

4.4375

4.4375

20062007

%

18- Distribution to depositors

On the basis of the results for the year, the Board of Directors of the Bank determined the depositors’ share of profit
at the following rates;

KD customer accounts

Saving account

1 month deposit

3 months deposit

6 months deposit

Recurring deposits

Non- KD customer accounts

Saving account

1 month deposit

3 month deposit

19- Investment income

1,869

73

202

2,144

2,207

5,233

18

7,458

20062007

(KD ‘000)

Dividend income

Net gain from investments at fair value through profit or loss

Net gain from investments available for sale

20- Impairment and other provisions

3,213

364

(67)

-

3,510

(5,854)

(1,470)

(76)

(6,856)

(14,256)

Financing receivables and loans and advances - Note 6

Off balance sheet items

Other provisions

Provision for impairment of investment in an associate

20062007

(KD ‘000)
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       23.30         11.73

17,982 9,491

857,295

(85,651)

771,644

857,295

(48,290)

809,005

11,289

-

105,269

130,173

-

246,731

4,291

111,635

-

-

15,000

130,926

1,025

113

1,138

861

258

1,119

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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21- Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to the shareholders by the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year as follows:

Net profit for the year

Weighted average number of shares outstanding:

Weighted average of number of shares issued

Weighted average number of treasury shares

Weighted average number of shares outstanding

Earnings per share

20062007

FilsFils

Shares

(‘000s)

Shares

(‘000s)

22- Cash and Cash Equivalents

20062007

(KD ‘000)

Cash and balances with banks and financial institutions

Deposits with other Banks and financial institutions

Murabaha finance with Central Bank of Kuwait

Murabaha finance with other banks and financial institutions- less than 90 days

Money at call and short notice

A N N U A L  R E P O R T

KUWAIT INTERNATIONAL BANK

23- Related Parties

These are transactions with certain related parties (shareholders, associates, directors and executive officers of the Bank,
close members of their families and companies in which they are principal owners or over which they are able to exercise
significant influence) who were customers of the Bank in the ordinary course of business. Such transactions were made on
substantially the same terms including profit and interest rates and collateral as those prevailing at the same time for comparable
transactions with unrelated parties and did not involve more than a normal amount of risk.

The remuneration to directors and other members of key management during the year was as follows:

20062007

(KD ‘000)

Short-term benefits

Post-employment benefits

(KD ‘000) (KD ‘000)
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102

-

52

100

1

83

1

-

-

-

-

-

1

3

6

2

6

12

477

-

233

1,092

44

-

125

1

-

-

1

-

-

3

-

7

2

1

16
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20062007

No. of
Directors or

Executive officers

No. of related
parties

Amount
KD '000

No. of
Directors or

Executive officers

No. of related
parties

Amount
KD '000

Directors

Financing receivables and loans

Credit Cards

Deposits

Collaterals

Executive officers

Financing receivables and loans

Credit Cards

Deposits

24- Commitments And Contingent Liabilities

The year-end balances included in the balance sheet are as follows:

To meet the financial needs of customers, the Bank enters into various contingent liabilities and irrevocable commitments.
Even though these obligations may not be recognised on the balance sheet, they contain credit risk and therefore part of the
overall risk of the Bank.

The total outstanding contingent liabilities and commitments are as follows:

A N N U A L  R E P O R T

KUWAIT INTERNATIONAL BANK

7,208

7,501

41,669

65,341

835

2,287

50,836

40,272

20062007

(KD ‘000)

Acceptances

Letters of credit

Letters of guarantee

Commitments to extend credit

25- Segment information

a) Primary segment information

For the purposes of segment reporting, the Bank’s management has grouped the Bank’s products and services into the
following primary business segments:

• Commercial, Consumer and International Banking - comprising of range of banking services and investment products to
  corporate and individual customers, providing commodity and real estate murabaha finance, Ijara and wakala facilities.

• Treasury, Fund Management and Institutional Banking - comprising of liquidity management, correspondent banking,
  clearing, murabaha investments, exchange of deposits with banks and financial institutions.

• Investment Management - comprising of investment in associates and other investments.

Segment results include revenue and expenses directly attributable to a segment and an allocation of cost of funds to
segments based on daily weighted average balance of segment assets. Segment revenue and segment expenses do
not include any inter-segment transfers.

Segment assets and liabilities comprise those operating assets and liabilities that are directly attributable to the segment.
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49,281

6,686

486,142

393,689

7,400

13,210

1,792

260,225

261,676

-

7,469

1,013

43,347

6,856

69,960

9,491

789,714

13,843

803,557

655,365

5,660

661,025

2,017

770

14,256

50,820
13,957

573,795

445,797

(3,510)

12,524
3,437

283,614

325,713

2,144
588

71,617

-

65,488
17,982

929,026
18,836

947,862
771,510

18,500
790,010

2,399
988

(3,510)
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Capital expenditure represents the total cost incurred during the year to acquire assets that are expected to be used during
more than one period. (KD ‘000)

Commercial,
consumer and
international

banking

Treasury, fund
management

and institutional
banking

Investment
management

Total

As at December 2007
Segment revenue

Net profit
Segment assets

Unallocated assets

Total assets
Segment liabilities

Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities
Capital expenditure

Depreciation

Impairment and other provisions

Commercial,
consumer and
international

banking

Treasury, fund
management

and institutional
banking

Investment
management

Total

As at December 2006
Segment revenue

Net profit
Segment assets

Unallocated assets

Total assets
Segment liabilities

Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities
Capital expenditure

Depreciation

Impairment and other provisions

b) Secondary segment information

The Bank does not operate from any geographical location other than Kuwait.

26- Financial instruments and risk management

(a) Strategy in using financial instruments

As an Islamic commercial bank, the Bank’s activities are principally related to the sourcing of funds through Sharia’a compliant
financial instruments, within the guidelines prescribed by Central Bank of Kuwait (CBK) and deploying these funds in Sharia’a
compliant financing and investment activities, to earn a profit. The profits are shared between the shareholders as well as the
profit sharing deposit account holders, as per policies and proportions determined by the Board of Directors and Fatwa and
Sharia’a committee.
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The funds raised vary in maturity between short and longer tenors and are mainly in Kuwait Dinars, apart from major foreign
currencies and GCC currencies. While deploying the funds, the Bank focuses on the safety of the funds as well as maintaining
sufficient liquidity to meet all claims that may fall due. Safety of shareholder and depositor funds is further enhanced by diversification
of financing activities across economic and geographic sectors, as well as borrower types.

(b) Overall risk management

The main objective of risk management in the Bank is to achieve an optimum balance between the twin goals of profit
maximization and capital maintenance.

The Bank’s risk management framework is built around this objective and seeks to address specific concerns of the various
stakeholders such as shareholders, Central Bank of Kuwait, rating agencies, customers, depositors and the general public.

The Bank’s commitment to the creation and maintenance of effective risk management systems and procedures is evidenced
by the oversight responsibility given to the Board Risk Management Committee.

The Bank has established a prudent and professional approach to risk-taking with the following underlying principles that
support its risk management framework:

•  Actively promoting an overall culture that accords high value to disciplined and effective risk  management;
•    Using professionally qualified people with appropriate risk management skills;
•    Disciplined processes for evaluation and acceptance of risk within appropriate limits in individual transactions, products
     and the management of financing and investments;
•    A management information system that provides timely and accurate information on risks to the relevant management group
     and the commitment to continuously upgrade these systems and apply the most up-to-date analytical tools and systems
   to properly capture risks, monitor positions and determine the impact of potential management actions; and
•  An internal audit function to ensure ongoing adherence to and integrity of risk management processes

The Bank has a Risk Management Department, which is primarily responsible for risk management in the Bank. The Risk
Management Department is structured in a manner which facilitates focused attention on each of the specific risk areas,  e.g.,
credit, liquidity, market (encompassing foreign exchange, profit rate, equity risks) and operational risks.

The Bank’s risk management methodologies include

•   Pro-active methodologies like continuous review and enhancement of: the Bank’s policies and procedures; development
     and enhancement of risk measurement tools like risk grading models, pricing models and VaR models; risk inputs in respect
     of the Bank’s strategic planning as well as structuring and review of product and services.

•   On-going methodologies, like risk management inputs in respect of proposed Financing and Investment applications;
     compliance review - post approval - of financing and investment facilities; periodical review of the financing and investment
    portfolio by way of reports and highlighting perceived risks to top management as well as line functionaries; continuous
     monitoring of market, operational and IT-security related risks.

•    Post fact methodologies, like review of proposals and trends in respect of provisions; write-offs and disposal of investments.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to
incur a financial loss. This includes the risk of decline in the credit standing of the customer. While such decline does not imply
default, it increases the probability of the customer defaulting. Financial instruments that create credit risk include financing
facilities and commitments to extend credit, securities and investment in securities.

A N N U A L  R E P O R T
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Credit risk management structure

To manage credit risk, the Bank has established a Board level Financing and Investment Committee and the following
management committees

•   Financing and investment committee
•   Provision committee

The Board financing and investment committee is responsible for reviewing and approving the management level financing
and investment committee’s recommendations with regard to credit facilities, financing relationships, financing limits, pricing
and profitability.

The management level financing and investment committee is responsible for safeguarding the asset quality of the Bank and
ensuring profitable use of funds. The committee reviews the Bank’s credit policy in line with Central Bank of Kuwait guidelines
for commercial and retail credit as well as the inter-bank and country limits. The committee approves or renews credit proposals
within the committee’s lending limits and reviews and concurs in the approval process for extension of credit in excess of the
authority of the committee.

The provision committee is primarily responsible for determining the provisions required for impaired loans when the facility
is not already classified as irregular according to Central Bank of Kuwait regulations (i.e. the Watch list classification of financing
facilities). In addition to this the committee also reviews the required provisions for irregular financing facilities to ensure
compliance with Central Bank of Kuwait regulations.

In accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of Kuwait dated 18 December 1996, setting out the rules and regulations
regarding the classification of credit facilities, the Bank has formed an internal committee which is composed of competent
professional staff and which has as its purpose the study and evaluation of the existing credit facilities of each customer of
the Bank. This committee is required to identify any abnormal situations and difficulties associated with a customer’s position,
which might cause the debt to be classified as irregular, and to determine an appropriate provisioning level. The Committee,
which meets regularly throughout the year, also studies the positions of those customers whose irregular balances exceed
25% of their total debt, in order to determine whether further provisions are required.

Credit risk management strategy and process

The Bank manages its credit facilities portfolio with the objective of ensuring that it is well diversified and it earns a level of
return appropriate to the risk it assumes.

In the course of normal business, the Bank deploys its funds in various credit facilities, with the primary objective of generating
profits for the shareholder. However, at the same time, the Bank seeks to ensure the quality of the credit facilities. The bank
continually strives to achieve an optimal balance between the return and credit quality of the portfolio.

The Bank’s business manuals dealing with credit lay down the credit risk management framework by specifying various
covenants and credit standards which include

• clear definition of roles and responsibilities of the various functionaries involved in the different stages of the credit
facility life cycle

• establishing clear approval authority structure both for routine as well as exceptional credit facilities
• listing beneficiary, facility, collateral and pricing parameters for the Bank’s product-set;
• standardizing credit approval packages;
• defining criteria for collateral valuation and policies for collateral management
• detailing the procedures for the entire credit life-cycle, including problem loan management
• ensuring, by way limits, a diversification of the credit portfolio across geographies (country’s / regions), sectors,

and counterparties.

A N N U A L  R E P O R T
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Credit risk measurement

The Bank measures credit risk in terms of asset quality using two primary measures - the provisioning ration and the non performing
financing receivables and loans and advances ratio. The non performing loans ratio is the ratio of non performing loans as a
percentage of total loans.

Definitions of past due and impaired

The following classification of credit exposures is considered by the Bank for identifying impaired credit facilities

No. of days past due                                                            classification

More than 30 days but not exceeding 90 days                   watch list
More than 90 days but not exceeding 180 days                 substandard
More than 180 days but not exceeding 365 days               doubtful
More than 365 days                                                            bad   

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the balance sheet date is the carrying amount of each financial asset on the balance
sheet.

Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the
same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be
similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.  Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity
of the Bank’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographic location.

Geographical and industry sector concentrations of financial assets and off balance sheet items are as follows:
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611

13,894

31,512

9,004

731,831

786,852

136,603

293,787

223,924

107,108

25,430

786,852

-

-

540

824

92,866

94,230

49

1,364

92,817

-

-

94,230

33

5,584

52,629

2,541

858,496

919,283

112,986

298,886

330,721

133,100

43,590

919,283

-

-

273

269

121,177

121,719

41

542

121,136

-

-

121,719

Geographic region:

Asia

North America

Middle east (excluding Kuwait)

Europe

Kuwait

Industry sector:

Personal

Financial institutions

Real Estate

Construction

Others

Financial
assets

Off balance
sheet items

Financial
assets

Off balance
sheet items

(KD ‘000)

2007 2006
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Maximum exposure to credit risk

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet, including derivatives without
taking account of any collateral and other credit enhancements. The maximum exposure is shown gross, before the effect of
mitigation through the use of master netting and collateral agreements.

Credit risk can also arise due to a significant concentration of Bank’s assets to any single counterparty; this risk is managed by
diversification of the portfolio. The 20 largest gross exposures outstanding as a percentage of total credit risk exposures as at 31
December 2007 is 33.77% (2006: 34.11%).

Credit risk mitigation

Credit risk mitigation techniques that the Bank is permitted to recognize are collateral, netting and guarantees provided certain
conditions which include such agreements being binding on all parties and legal enforceability are met.

The Bank does not make use of netting whether on or off-balance sheet.

The Bank’s lending policy specifies the acceptable types of collateral, source of valuation, accuracy of valuation and frequency
of revaluation in respect of collateral. The policy also specifies the maximum facility commitment to collateral value and approval
levels for different types of collateral and facility. The accepted collaterals are cash, first demand bank guarantees, equity shares
listed on the Kuwait Stock Exchange, and real estate-both within and outside Kuwait.

As part of general collateral control mechanism, the Bank periodically re-values all collateral to ascertain that the collateral cover
is not lower than the value at the time of the original approval. The Bank also continuously monitors the validity and expiry dates
of mortgages to ensure their timely renewal.

The main types of guarantors are individuals and corporate entities. Since none the Bank’s guarantor counterparties have been
rated by any of the three rating agencies, approved by the Central Bank of Kuwait for the purposes of calculation of Capital
adequacy, the Bank has not taken any guarantor related credit risk mitigation allowance while arriving at the capital adequacy.
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(KD ‘000)
Gross maximum exposure

2007 2006

Credit risk exposures relating to on-balance sheet items:

Cash and balances with banks and financial institutions

Treasury and Central bank bonds

Due from banks and other financial institutions

Financing receivables and loans and advances

  - Consumer finance

  - Corporate finance

Total

1,924

4,946

276,744

-

112,986

460,808

857,408

2,372

129,298

128,554

-

136,603

346,827

743,654

Credit risk exposures relating to off-balance sheet items:

Acceptances

Letters of credit

Guarantees

Commitments to extend credit

Total

Total credit risk exposure

7,208

7,501

41,669

65,341

121,719

979,127

835

2,287

50,836

40,272

94,230

837,884
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Collateral and other credit enhancements:

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. Guidelines are
implemented regarding the acceptability of types of collateral and valuation parameters.

The main types of collateral are cash, securities, and charges over real estate properties, inventories and counter-guarantees

Management monitors the market value of collateral, requests additional collateral in accordance with the underlying agreement,
and monitors the market value of collateral obtained during its review of the adequacy of the allowance for impairment losses.

It is the Bank’s policy to dispose of repossessed properties in an orderly fashion. The proceeds are used to reduce or repay
the outstanding claim. In general, the Bank does not occupy repossessed properties for business use.

At 31 December 2007 71 % (31 December 2006 57%) of the total outstanding financing receivables and loans and receivables
were fully secured with a collateral coverage of 2 times the underlying financing receivables and loans and advances.
(2006 : 2 times)

Credit quality of financial instruments

The Bank classifies the various credit risk exposure which are neither past due nor impaired into three categories of credit
quality as under:-

•  High quality: Regular exposures covered fully by collateral in excess of 100% of the amount outstanding.

•   Standard quality: Regular exposures where collateral does not fully cover the amount outstanding, but the customer has
     no incident of past due during the previous 12 months.

•  Moderate quality: All other regular exposures where the collateral does not fully cover the amount outstanding.

The table below shows the credit risk exposure by credit quality of financial assets by class and grade
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371,459

104,199

475,658

186,714

44,475

231,189

45,246

57,071

102,317

43,478

57,752

101,230

4,232

4,108

8,340

3,560

18,103

21,663

2007

Financing receivables and loans and advances:

- Corporate financing

- Consumer financing

Neither past due nor impaired

(KD ‘000)

High quality Standard quality Moderate quality Total

2006

Loans and advances:

- Corporate lending

- Consumer lending

371,459

104,199

475,658

233,752

120,330

354,082
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Ageing analysis of past due but not impaired financing receivables and loans and advances as per class of financial assets

66,731
2,708

69,439
122,704

62,712
2,874

65,586
120,818

10,853
1,430

12,283
22,832

20,151
3,602

23,753
25,902

1,453
1,267
2,720
8,403

2,811
1,528
4,339
5,247

79,037
5,405

84,442
153,939

85,674
8,004

93,678
151,967

Past due but not impaired

(KD ‘000)

Past due
up to 30 days

Past due
30 to 60 days

Past due
60 to 90 days

Total

2007
Financing receivables and loans and advances:
- Corporate financing
- Consumer financing

Fair value of collateral

2006
Loans and advances:
- Corporate lending
- Consumer lending

Fair value of collateral

499,133
121,985
621,118

393,497
137,736
531,233

50,357
10,698
61,055

74,071
9,402

83,473

76,035
8,265

84,300

108,852
6,734

115,586

Financial assets by class individually impaired
(KD ‘000)

Gross
exposure

Impairment
Fair value

of collateral

2007
Financing receivables and loans and advances:
- Corporate financing
- Consumer financing

2006
Loans and advances:
- Corporate lending
- Consumer lending

Financial instruments with contractual amounts representing credit risk

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as required. The contractual amounts
represent the credit risk, assuming that the amounts are fully advanced and that any collateral or other security is of no value.
However, the total contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not necessarily represent future cash requirements,
since many of these commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.

(i) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulty in meeting obligation associated with financial liabilities. To limit
liquidity risk, management has arranged diversified funding sources, manages assets with liquidity in mind, and monitors liquidity
on a daily basis. The Bank maintains access to liquidity in the form of balance sheet positions and access to markets such that,
even under adverse conditions, it does not need to raise deposits at unreasonable rates or sell assets on a forced basis.
The Bank’s management of liquidity risk is consistent with its overall risk management framework and includes establishing
minimum liquid asset requirements and limits with regards to the acceptance of short term wholesale deposits to protect against
short term liquidity demands. The Bank monitors liquidity risk by measuring the liquidity gaps on a daily basis and the position is
reviewed by ALCO on a monthly basis. Similarly liquidity reserve position and the ratio of financing facilities to eligible deposits
are monitored on a daily basis.
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11,289
4,946

213,880
12,297
17,511
4,656

-
-
-

264,579

114,699
233,085

1,504
-
-

349,288
(84,709)

-
-

29,877
12,016

-
-
-
-
-

41,893

13,857
180,838

-
-
-

194,695
(152,802)

-
-

23,622
215,972

-
-
-
-
-

239,594

35,325
157,329

-
-
-

192,654
46,940

-
-
-

333,509
-

39,708
9,741

15,255
3,583

401,796

34,292
581

-
18,500

157,329
211,225
190,571

11,289
4,946

267,379
573,794

17,511
44,364

9,741
15,255

3,583
947,862

198,173
571,833

1,504
18,500

157,852
947,862

-
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The bank measures liquidity risk by preparing and monitoring the maturity profile of its assets and liabilities as disclosed below

At 31 December 2007
Assets:
Cash and balances with banks and financial institutions
Treasury  and Central Bank bonds
Due from banks and other financial institutions
Financing receivables and loans and advances
Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Investments available for sale
Investments in associates
Property and equipment
Other assets

Total assets

Up to
1 month

1-3
Months

3-12
months

Over
1 year

Total

(KD ‘000)

Liabilities and equity:
Due to banks and other financial institutions
Depositors’ accounts
Customer deposits
Other liabilities
Shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and equity
Net liquidity gap

Up to
1 month

1-3
Months

3-12
months

Over
1 year

Total

(KD ‘000)

At 31 December 2006
Assets:
Cash and balances with banks and financial institutions
Treasury  and Central Bank bonds
Due from banks and other financial institutions
Loans and advances
Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Investments available for sale
Investments in associates
Property and equipment
Other assets
Total assets

Liabilities and equity:
Due to banks and other financial institutions
Customer deposits
Other liabilities
Shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and equity
Net liquidity gap

19,291
129,298
111,635
33,244
11,261

-
-
-

842
305,571

13,259
294,622

5,473
-

313,354
(7,783)

-
-
-

25,230
-

2,111
-
-

208
27,549

17,474
95,575
1,886

-
114,935
(87,386)

-
-
-

142,602
-
-
-
-

510
143,112

6,754
168,685

3,015
-

178,454
(35,342)

-
-
-

282,354
-

29,826
150

 13,843
1,152

327,325

41,686
4,141
8,455

142,532
196,841
130,511

19,291
129,298
111,635
483,430

11,261
31,937

150
  13,843

2,712
803,557

79,173
563,023
18,829

142,532
803,557

-
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98,092

89,456

1,504

-

189,052

27,512

251,468

5,473

284,453

44,114

84,482

-

-

128,596

24,708

120,557

1,886

147,151

35,325

286,794

-

-

322,119

29,339

319,102

3,015

351,456

34,292

581

-

18,500

53,373

-

-

8,455

8,455

211,823

461,313

1,504

18,500

693,140

81,559

691,127

18,829

791,515

10,891

5,601

16,492

10,510

3,322

13,832

12,056

3,145

15,201

12,814

1,530

14,344

22,071

35,347

57,418

20,458

17,098

37,556

11,329

21,248

32,577

10,176

18,322

28,498

31

-

31

-

-

-

56,378

65,341

121,719

53,958

40,272

94,230
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Bank’s financial liabilities at 31 December 2007 based on contractual
undiscounted repayment obligations. See note – ‘Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities’ for the expected maturities of these
liabilities. Repayments which are subject to notice are treated as if notice were to be given immediately.
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Less than
1 month

Total

(KD ‘000)

1-3
months

3-12
Months

1 to 5
years

Over
5 years

At 31 December 2007

Undiscounted liabilities

Due to banks and other financial institutions

Depositors’ accounts

Customer deposits

Other liabilities

At 31 December 2006

Due to banks and other financial institutions

Customer deposits

Other liabilities

The table below shows the contractual expiry of the Bank’s contingent liabilities and commitments.

Less than
1 month

Total

(KD ‘000)

1-3
months

3-12
Months

1 to 5
years

Over
5 years

At 31 December 2007

Undiscounted liabilities

Contingent liabilities

Commitments

At 31 December 2006

Contingent liabilities

Commitments

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
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(iii)Market risk management

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risk currency risk, rate of return risk and other price risk (other than
those arising from rate of return risk or currency risk).

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control exposures within acceptable parameters, whilst optimising
returns. Given the Bank’s current profile of financial instruments, the principle exposure is the risk of loss arising from fluctuations
in the future cash flows or fair values of these financial instruments because of a change in achievable rates. This is managed
principally through monitoring gaps between effective profit and rental rates and by having approved rates and bands reviewed
at regular re-pricing meetings.

Market risk management structure

The overall responsibility of managing the Bank’s market risks is of the asset liability management committee (ALCO). The
day to day management of market risks is the responsibility of the treasury department which is headed by the Treasurer who
reports to the General Manager. The International Banking Department is responsible for proposing country limits based on
Moody’s long term sovereign currency debt rating, or equivalent rating by the two other rating agencies, and reviewing them
annually. The measurement, monitoring and reporting of market risks is the responsibility of the market risk division within risk
management department

Market risk management strategy and process

The bank has established risk management policies and limits within which exposure to market risks is monitored and controlled.
The following table sets out the market risk capital charge for profit rate risk, equity position risk, foreign exchange risk and
commodity risk

(iii a) Rate of return risk

•   Rate of return for commodity Murabaha and Wakala receivables are agreed with the counterparty bank at the time of each
     transaction and the profit mark-up and effective yield rate is consequently fixed for the duration of the contract. Risk exposure
     is managed by reviewing maturity profiles of transactions entered into.

•   Effective rates applied to new consumer finance transactions are agreed on a monthly basis by ALCO and the profit mark-
    up will then be fixed for each individual transaction for the agreed deferred payment terms.

•   Rental for longer term commercial property financing is benchmarked against a market measure, in agreement with the
    Bank’s Sharia’a Supervisory Committee, and therefore amounts receivable are reassessed every.

•   Rates of return payable on customer deposit accounts are calculated at the end of three month end in line with the Mudaraba
     profit model and customer terms and conditions.

The Bank is not exposed to profit rate risk, since in accordance with Islamic Sharia’a the Bank does not provide contractual
rate of return for deposits.

(iii b) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Bank views itself as a Kuwaiti entity, with the Kuwaiti Dinar as its functional currency. The Board
has set limits on positions by currency. Positions are monitored on a daily basis and hedging strategies used to ensure positions
are maintained within established limits.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(289)

(19)

414

106

(648)

(44)

337

(355)

Net assets/ (liabilities)

US Dollars

Sterling Pounds

Others
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(KD ‘000)

20062007

The Bank had the following significant net exposures denominated in foreign currencies as at 31 December:

(iii c) Equity price risk

This is a risk that the value or future cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other
than those arising from rate of return risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market. The Bank manages this risk through diversification
of investments in terms of geographical distribution and industry concentration.

(iii d) Prepayment risk

Prepayment risk is the risk that the Bank will incur a financial loss because its customers and counterparties repay or request
repayment earlier or later than expected, such as fixed rate mortgages when profit/ interest rates fall. Due to the contractual terms
of its products the Bank is not exposed to prepayment risk.

(iv)Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems, or from external
events.

The Bank’s business and support units have primary responsibility for identifying, assessing and managing their operational risks.
They employ internal control techniques to reduce their likelihood or impact to tolerable levels within the Bank’s risk appetite.
Where appropriate, risk is mitigated by way of insurance.

The Bank has a set of policies and procedures that are applied to identify, assess and control operations risk in addition to other
types of risks relating to the banking and financial activities of the Bank. Operational risk is managed through the Risk Management
Department. This department ensures compliance with policies and procedures to identify, assess, control and monitor operational
risk as part of overall risk management.

The management of operational risks complies in all material respects with Central Bank of Kuwait instructions dated November
14, 1996, regarding general guidelines for internal control systems and directive issued on October 13, 2003, regarding “Sound
practices for management and control of operational risks“.
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27-Fair values of financial instruments

Fair values of financial instruments are not materially different from their carrying values. For financial assets and liabilities
that are liquid or having a short term maturity (less than three months) it is assumed that the carrying amounts approximate
their fair value. This assumption is also applied to savings accounts under mudaraba contract without a specific maturity.

As of 31 December 2007 fair values of financial instruments based on quoted market prices and observable market data
amounted to KD 4,938 (2006 KD 6,797thousand). Certain financial instruments are recorded at fair value using valuation
techniques as current market transactions or observable market data are not available. Their fair value is determined using a
valuation model that has been tested against the prices of actual market transactions and using the Bank’s best estimate of
the most appropriate model inputs. These are adjusted to reflect the marketability, earnings spread of these instruments and
limitations of the model. The impact on income statement and equity would be immaterial if the assumptions were changed
in by 5%.

The methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values of financial instruments is described in fair value section
of note 2. Significant Accounting policies.

As explained in note 7, included under investment available for sale are unquoted equity investments with a carrying value of
KD 17,646 (2006: KD 18,263) for which fair value cannot be reliably determined.

28-Capital adequacy and Capital Management

The Bank’s objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the ‘equity’ on the face of balance sheet, are:

• To comply with the capital requirement set by the regulators of the banking markets where the entities within
         the Bank operate;

• To safeguard the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders’
         and benefits for other stakeholders; and

• To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored daily by the Bank’s management, employing techniques
based on the guidelines developed by the Basel committee and the Central Bank of Kuwait directives, as implemented by the
State of Kuwait for supervisory purposes. The required information is filed with the authority on a quarterly basis.
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85,729

79,076

989

(45,242)

120,552
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The Bank’s regulatory capital position at 31 December 2007 was as follows:

Tier 1 Capital

Share capital

Reserves

Retained earnings

Treasury shares

(KD ‘000)

20062007

Tier 2 Capital

Fair value reserve

Total regulatory capital

Risk-weighted assets

Capital ratios

Total regulatory capital expressed as a percentage of total  risk-weighted assets

Total tier 1 capital expressed as a percentage of risk-weighted assets

A N N U A L  R E P O R T
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29-Comparative Figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified in order to conform with current year presentation but have no effect
on previously reported profit or shareholders’ equity.

30-Shareholders’ Zakat

In accordance with Islamic Sharia’a, responsibility for payment of Zakat is that of the shareholders.

85,729

80,079

1,377

(45,242)

121,943

8,096

8,096

130,039

756,579

17.19%

16.12%

10,215

10,215

130,767

599,268

21.82%

20.12%
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